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PAULY, ROGERS AND CO., P.C. 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

• 12700 SW 72ND AVENUE • TIGARD, OREGON 97223 
• (503) 620-2632 • FAX (503) 684-7523 

November 21, 2007 

To the Board of Education 
Greater Albany Public School District 
Linn County, Oregon 

INDEPE:NDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

We have audited the basic financial statements of the Greater Albany Public School District, as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2007, as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of The 
District's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government· Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the basic financial 
statements. An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the District's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. 
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis 
for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Greater Albany Public School District, at June 30, 2007 and the results of operations for the year then 
ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our reports dated November 21, 2007 on 
our consideration of Greater Albany Public School District's internal control over financial reporting and our tests 
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. Those reports are an integral 
part of an audit performed in accordance with Go've·rnment Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction 
with this report in considering the results of our audit. 

The Management's Discussion, as listed on the table of contents, is not a required part of the basic financial 
statements but are supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have 
applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of 
measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the 
information and express no opinion on it. 
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Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
the Greater Albany Public School District's basic financial statements. The Supplementary Information, including 
budgetary comparison schedules (which are required supplementary information for major governmental funds) as 
listed in the Table of Contents, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the 
basic financial statements. The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, as listed in the table of contents, is 
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, 
Audits ofStates, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. The Supplementary Information and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards have been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are 
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, except as noted 
below. 

The Schedule of Revenues by Function, Schedules of Expenditures by Function/Object and Supplemental 
Infonnation on pages 41 through 46 and 49 are presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Oregon 
Department of Education, however, we did not audit the infonnation and express no opinion on it. 

M'<-4 1!2~ J ~-/.c 
PAULY, ROGERS AND CO., P.C. 
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GREATER ALBANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT SJ 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) 

Our discussion and analysis of Greater Albany Public School District's financial performance provides an 
overview of the District's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007. Please read it in conjunction 
with the District's Financial Statements, which follows this MD&A. 

FINANCIAL IDGHLIGHTS 

• At June 30, 2007, the Districts assets exceeded its liabilities by $13,790,459. 
• The District decreased their net assets by $3,519,523, during 2006-07. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The annual report consists of a series of financial statements that show information for the District as a whole, its 
funds, and its fiduciary responsibilities. The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities provides 
information about the activities of the District as a whole and presents a longer-term view of the District's 
finances. Our fund financial statements are included later in the financial report. For our governmental activities, 
these statements tell how we financed our services in the short-term as well as what remains for future spending. 
Fund statements also may give you some insights into the District's overall financial health. Fund financial 
statements also report the District's operations in more detail than the government-wide financial statements by 
providing information about the District's most significant fund, the general fund. 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The government-wide financial statements present infonnation on the District's finances in a manner similar to 
private sector businesses. One of the most important questions asked about the District is, "Is the District as a 
whole better off or worse off financially as a result of the year's activities?" The Statement of Net Assets and 
Statement of Activities report information on the District as a whole and its activities in a way that helps answer 
this question. We prepare these statements to include all assets and liabilities, using the accrual basis of 
accounting. All of the current year's revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is 
received or paid. 

The Statement of Net Assets shows the District's assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two 
reported as net assets. All capital assets and long-term liabilities, and general government functions, are shown in 
the Statement of Net Assets. 

The Statement of Activities shows revenues, expenses, and the change in net assets for the District as a whole. 
Revenues and expenses attributable to specific functions are segregated from general revenues, to display the 
extent to which general revenues support each function. 
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Governmental funds account for the same functions as are reported as governmental activities in the government­
wide financial statements. The governmental fund reporting focuses on how money flows in and out of funds and 
the balances left at year end that are available for spending. They are reported using the accounting method called 
"modified accrual" accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can be readily converted to 
cash. This information is essential for preparation of and compliance with annual budgets. We describe the 
relationship (or differences) between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the 
Statement of Activities) and governmental funds in reconciliations following the government statements. The 
notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a complete understanding of 
the data provided in the financial statements. 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
Total assets, liabilities and net assets were as follows: 

2007 2006 %Change 
Assets 

Current and other assets $ 117,695,234 $ 59,947,146 96.3% 
Capital assets (net) 18,005,166 18,152,617 -0.8% 

Total assets 135,700,400 78,099,763 73.8% 
Liabilities 

Other liabilities 13,057,231 10,444,737 25.0% 
Long-term liabilities 108,852,710 50,354,044 116.2% 

Total liabilities 121,909,941 60,798,781 100.5% 
Net Assets 

Investment in capital assets, 
net of related debt 12,660,563 13,692,573 -7.5% 

Restricted for Capital Projects l,494,389 l,423,528 5.0% 
Restricted for Debt Service 1,014,701 1,059,148 -4.2% 
Unrestricted (1,379,194) 1,134,733 -221.5% 

Total net assets $ 13,790,459 $ 17,309,982 -20.3% 
=========== 

The District's revenues and expenses for the two years, were as follows: 

2007 2006 % Change 

Revenues 
Charges for Services $ 967,294 $ 944,340 2.4% 

Operatings Grants 7,575,782 5,505,155 37.6% 

General Revenues 
Property Taxes 17,204,580 17,170,726 0.2% 
Unrestricted Federal Income 972,036 976,649 -0.5% 
Unrestricted State and Local Support 42,836,866 42,668,019 0.4% 
Gain/Loss on Disposal of Capital Assets 22 236,846 100.0% 

Total Revenues 69,556,580 67,501,735 3.0% 

Expenses 

Instruction 41,250,186 39,672,482 4.0% 
Support Services 22,830,550 22,696,235 0.6% 
Community Services 3,008,013 2,951,767 1.9% 

Facilities Acquistion and Construction 3,379,931 1,780,537 
Interest on Long-Term Debt 2,607,427 2,655,706 -1.8% 

Total Expenses 73,076,107 69,756,727 4.8% 

Change in Net Assets (3,519,527) (2,254,992) 56.1% 
Beginning Net Assets 17,309,982 19,564,974 -11.5% 
Ending Net Assets $ 13,790,455 $ 17,309,982 

======= 
-20.3% 
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FUND FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

The focus of the governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of 
spendable resources. Unreserved fund balance measures the District's net resources available for appropriation in 
the next fiscal year. As of June 30, 2007, total fund balance of the governmental funds was $68,427,815. These 
amounts are available to use, in accordance with applicable restrictions on the nature of the expenditures. 

Summary of ending fund balances for the major governmental funds for 2007 and 2006 are as follows: 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 

General Fund 
Grants Fund 
Capital Improvement Fund #3 
Other Governmental 

$ 

2007 
6,426,715 

503,941 
57,617,006 
3,880,153 

$ 

2006 
8,475,276 

819,340 

3,836,765 

$ 

CHANGE 
(2,048,561) 

(315,399) 
57,617,006 

43,388 

$ 68,427,815 $ 13,131,381 $ 55,296,434 

CAPITAL ASSETS 

The District had $18,005,166 invested in a broad range of capital assets, net of depreciation, at June 30, 2007. 
Please refer to the notes to basic financial statements for more detailed information regarding capital assets. 

DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

As of June 30, 2007 the District had $108,852,710 in long-term debt. Please refer to the notes to the basic 
financial statements for more detailed information regarding long-term debt. 

NEW GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 

In November 2006, district voters passed a $55M general obligation bond. The bond is providing critical 
upgrades in every district school, creating increased classroom space where it is needed most, and soon, the bond 
will build a new school east of I-5. The School Board hopes to open the new school in the fall of 2009, serving 
grades three through eight with an enrollment capacity of 800 students. The new school will be a sister school to 
Clover Ridge Elementary, the only other district school geographically located east of the freeway. With the 
opening of the new school, Clover Ridge will become a school serving students in Kindergarten through second 
grade. 

2007-2008 BUDGET 

The School District's budget continues to grow as a result of steady increasing enrollment. There were 9,169 
students enrolled in the School District on October 1, 2007. This represents an increase of 197 students from the 
previous year and a combined growth of 652 students in the past three years. The district has grown by 1,112 
students in the past six years alone, an increase of 14%. 

The State School Fund (made up of local and state funding sources) accounts for nearly 90% of the general fund 
revenue for the school district. Statewide, this formula revenue for school district operations is approximately 
11.6% higher in 2007-09 than in the prior biennium. In addition, the 2007 Legislature appropriated $260 million 
to the School Improvement Fund. This fund is primarily for school district use to make improvements to tmeet 
quality education goals and is accounted for as a separate fund in the budget. This O\erall level of funding has 
allowed for modest increases in programs within the General Fund while expanding targeted programs (such as 
literacy) funded from the School Improvement Fund. 
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REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 

Our financial report is designed to provide our taxpayers, parents, teachers, students, investors and creditors with 
an overview of the District's finances. If you have any questions about this report or need any clarification of 
information please contact the Business Office at the Greater Albany Public School District offices, located at 718 
ih Avenue SW, Albany, Oregon 97321. 

Signaturf'·~.....- = Signature: Jnaat/2a. Jd~ 
Title: Dr, -1 '&£Hi-i~,.u Title: __C..,,o_n.,..±_,._r,.:=-o....,l=leo..cr-~-~--
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GREATER ALBANY PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
LINN COUNTY, OREGON 

STATEMENT OF i\ET ASSETS 
.June 30, 2007 

Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts Receivable 
Property Taxes Receivable 
Prepaid Pension Asset 
Supply Inventory 
Capital assets, net 

Total Assets 

Lia bilitics 
Accounts payable 
Payroll Liabilities 
Unearned Revenue 
Accrued Interest Payable 
Accrued Vacation 
Early Rctim1ent Payable 
Long-term liabilities: 

Due within one year 
Due in more than one year 

Total liabilities 

Net assets 
invested in capital assets, net of related debt 
Restricted for: 

Capital Projects 
Debt Service 

Unrestricted 

Total net assets 

Governmental 
Activities 

$ 75,866,938 
1,751,117 
1,220,927 

38,801,792 
54-460 

18,005,166 

135.700-400 

1_942,896 
5,615,085 
1,560,850 

2,516 
154,545 

3.781.339 

4,367,168 
104,485,542 

121,909,941 

12,660,563 

1,494,389 
1,014,701 

(U79_!94) 

$ 13,790,459 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 
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GREATER ALBANY PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
LINN COUNTY, OREGON 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
Year Ended June 30, 2007 

Program Revenues 
Operating 

Charges for Grants and 
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions 

Instruction s 41,250,186 s $ 3,433,478 

Support Services 22,830,550 2,497,992 

Enterprise and Community Services 3,008,013 967,294 1,644,312 

Facilities Acquisition and Construction 3,379,931 

Interest on long-term debt 2,607,427 

Net (Expense) 
Revenue and 
Changes in 
Net Assets 

Governmental 
Activities 

$ (37,8] 6,708) 

(20,332,558) 

(396,407) 

(3,379,931) 

(2,607,427) 

Total governmental activities s 73,076,107 $ 967,294 $ 7,575,782 $ (64,533,0312 

General Revenues 
Property Taxes 
State Support 
Unrestricted Intermediate and Local Sources 
Unrestricted Federal Income 
Gain/Loss on Disposal of Capital Assets 

Total general revenues 

Change in Net Assets 

Net assets beginning of year 

"\1 et assets encl of year $ 

17,204,580 
39,182,906 

3,653,964 
972,036 

22 

61,013,508 

(3,519,523) 

17,309.982 

13,790,459 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 
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GREATER ALBA'.'i"Y PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

LINN COU'.'i"TY, OREGON 

HAL\\"CE SHEET- conm.NMENTAL FCNDS 

,June 30, 2007 

ASSETS: 
Cash and Investments 

Receivables: 

Taxes 
Accoun1, 

[nvcntnri c, 

Prcpaids 

Due From Other Funds 

s 

U[NI R/\L 

14,669,854 

1,134,219 

271,206 
54,4(,(J 

0 

290,677 

$ 

GRANT 

FUNDS 

100 

0 
820,%7 

0 

0 

0 

CAPITAL 

JMPROVEMENT 
fL;',[D //3 

s 57,623,107 

0 

0 
() 

0 

0 

OTIIER 

(iUVl:RNMI\NTAL 

s 3,232,371 

86,708 
658,410 

0 

0 
0 

s 

TOTAI,S 

75,525,432 

1,220,927 
1,750,581 

54,4(,() 

() 

290,677 

Total Assets $ 16,420,416 $ 821,067 $ 57,623,107 s 3,977,489 s 78,842,079 

L!ABJLITJl:S \ND llJND BAL/\\CT 

Liabilities: 

Due To Other Funds 

Deposits Payable 

Accounts Payable and Payroll Liabilities 

Deferred Revenue 

$ 0 

0 

7,526,916 
2 ,4(Ji,785 

$ 290,677 

0 

0 

26,449 

$ 0 
0 

6,101 

0 

s 0 

24,964 

0 
72,172 

s 290,677 
24,964 

7,533,017 
2,5(,5,(i()(, 

Tutal Liabilities '!,993,701 317,126 6,101 97,336 10,414,264 

Fund Balance: 

Reserved for: 

Cap1til Projects 

Lkbt Service 

Unrescned reported in: 

General Fund 

Grants Fund 
Other Governmental 

() 

0 

6,426,715 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

503,941 
0 

57,(il7 O0(i 

0 

0 

0 

0 

l ,4')4,405 

1,014,701 

0 

0 
1,371,047 

59,111,411 

1,014,701 

6,426,715 

503,941 

1,371,047 

Tllt:d Fund Balance t,,42(,,715 503,941 57,617,006 3,880, 15] (,8,427,815 

Total Liabilities 
nnd Fund Balance $ 16,420,416 $ 821,067 s 57,623,107 s 3,977,489 s 78,842,079 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 
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GREATER ALBANY PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
LINX COUNTY, OREGON 

Reconciliation of Governmental Funds 
Balance Sheet to Statement of Net Assets 

June 30, 2007 

Total Fund Bal:rnces 

Amounts n:pc,rtcd for govcrnmrntal ac1ivitit:s in the statement or net 

assets arc diikrcnl because: $ (>8,427.815 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources 
and therefore are not reported as assets in the governmental funds. 

Cap1lai Assds, net 18,005.1 (,(, 

Delinquent property taxes receivable will be collected this year, but are not 
available soon enough to pay for the current period's expenditures, and 
therefore are deferred in the funds. 1,004,756 

The unarnurti/c:cl portion of prt')•aicl pension rnsb and bond issuance cusb is not 

available to pay for current period expenditun;s, and therefore is not reported in the 

governmental funds. 

Prepaid pension costs 38,801,792 

lntern,il ,crvicc funds arc usc'd by managemt:nt lo change the costs of unc'.111ployment 

insuram:e premiumsand l'ERS reserve savings to mc.lividual runds. The a:;sels and liabilities 

of the internal service fonds are included in the governmental funds. 342.040 

Long-term liabilities not payable in the current year are not reported as 

governmental fond liabilities. Interest in long-term debt is not accrued in the 
governmc'nlal funds, but rather is rc,cognizccl as an c'xpenditure when due 

These liabilities consist of: 
Accrued Interest Payable 

Bonds Payable 
Capital Leases 
Accrued Compensated Absences 
Promissory Noles Payahk 

Pos1 Retirement Obligation 

(2,516) 
(105,518,878) 

(1,027,597) 
(154.545) 

(2,30(,.235) 

(3,781,339) 

Total Net Assets $ 13,790,459 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 
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GREATER ALBANY PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
LINN COUNTY, OREGON 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2007 

REVENUES: 
GENERAL 

GRANT 

FUNDS 

CAPITAL 
lMPROVEMENT 

FUND#3 
OTHER 

GOVERN1YIBNTAL TOTAL 

From Local Sources 
From Intermediate Sources 

From State Sources 
From Federal Sources 

$ 18,546,793 
47,839 

38,894,792 
972,036 

$ 329,104 
60,969 

132,434 
3,322,610 

$ 1,362,342 
0 

0 
0 

$ 6,444,823 
0 

155,680 
1,575,702 

$ 26,683,062 
108,808 

39,182,906 
5,870,348 

Total Revenues 58,461,460 3,845,117 1,362,342 8,176,205 71,845,124 

EXPENDITURES: 
Current: 

Instruction 
Support Services 
Enterprise and Community Services 
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 

Debt Service 

37,763,824 
20,967,508 

193,543 
1,033,147 

0 

2,561,293 
1,533,257 

65,966 
() 

0 

0 
322,571 

0 
1,936,643 

0 

1,648,618 
782,528 

2,798,446 
834,639 

3,951,601 

41,973,735 
23,605,864 

3,057,955 
3,804,429 
3,951,601 

Total Ex-penditures 59,958,022 4,160,516 2,259,214 10,015,832 76,393,584 · 

Excess ofRevenues Over, (Under) 

Expenditures (1,496,562) (315,399) (896,872) (1,839,627) -4,548,460 

Other Financing Sources, (lises) 

Loan Proceeds 
Sale of Capital Assets 
Transfer In 
Transfer Out 

0 
16 
0 

(552,015) 

0 
0 
0 
0 

58,513,878 

0 
0 
0 

1,331,000 
0 

552,015 

0 

59,844,878 
16 

552,015 
(552,015) 

Total Other Financing 

Sources, (Uses) (551,999) 0 58,513,878 1,883,015 59,844,894 

Net Change in Fund Balance (2,048,561) (315,399) 57,617,006 43,388 55,296,434 

Beginning Fund Equity 8,475,276 819,340 0 3,836,765 13,131,381 

Ending Fund Equity $ 6,426,715 $ 503,941 $ 57,617,006 $ 3,880,153 $ 68,427,815 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 
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GREATER ALBANY PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
LINN COUNTY, OREGON 

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 
and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental l•'unds 

to the Statement of Activities 

Year Ended .June 30, 2007 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement 
of activities are different because: 

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the 
Statement ofActivities, the cost ofthose assets is allocated over their estimated useful 
lives as depreciation expense. In the current period, these amounts are: 

Capitalized Expenditmes 
Depreciation expense 
Gain on Disposal 

Long-term debt proceeds are reported as other financing sources in governmental 
funds. In the Statement ofNet Assets, however, issuing long-term debt increases 
liabilitites. Similarly, repayment of principal is an expenditure in the governmental 
funds but reduces the liability in the Statement ofNet Assets. This is the amount 
by which proceeds exceeded repayments: 

New Debt Issued 
Principal Repaid 
Accrued Interest 

Governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums and discounts when debt is 
first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the Statement of Activities. 

747,069 
(894,526) 

6 

$ 55,296,434 

(147,451) 

(59,844,878) 
1,337,212 

6,962 

Amortization ofPrepaid Pension Asset (1,763,718) 

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current 
financial resources and there fore are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds. 

Compensated Absences 
Early Retirement 

Internal Service Funds are used by management to charge the costs of unemployment insurance premiums 
and PERS reserve savings to individual funds. This activity is consolidated with the governmental funds in 
the Statement ofActivities. 

Because some property taxes will not be collected for several months after the District's 
fiscal year ends, they are not considered as "available" revenues in the governmental 
funds, and are instead recorded as deferred revenue. They are, however, recorded 
as revenues in the Statement ofActivities. 

(18,924) 
1,623,328 

(63,618) 

55,130 

Change in Net .\ssds s (3,519,Sn I 

See accompanying notes lo basic fo1:1ncial statements. 
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GREATER ALBANY PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
LINN COUNTY, OREGON 

STATf:!\th:NT OF PROPRIETARY NET ASSSETS 

June 30, 2007 

INSURANCE RESERVE FUND 

ASSETS: 

Cash and Investments $ 341,506 
Accounts Receivable 534 

Total Assets $ 342,040 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE: 

Fund Balance: 

Total Fund Balance $ 342,040 

Total Liabilities 
and Fund Balance $ 342,040 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 
-10-



OPERATING REVENUE 

Local Revenue 

Ol'ER.\TINC; EXl'b:NSES 

Instruction 
Support Services 
Enterprise and Community Services 

I otal Operating f-!:-:pcnscs 

Operating Income (Loss) 

Nonoperating Revenues 
t:irnings on lnvcslments 

Change in Net Aoscts 

Total '\et Assets, Beginning 

Total \:c:t Assds, Ending 

GREATER ALBANY PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
LINN COUKTY, OREGON 

STATE\IENT OF REVEKUES, EXPENSES, AND 
CTL\'iGES IN l'ROl'RIEL\RY NET ASSETS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2007 

Il\SURANCE RESERVE FUND 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 
-[1-

Governmental Activities -

lntt'rnal Service 

$ 4,512 

6,893 
76,153 

4,153 

87,l')l) 

(82,687) 

19.!)69 

(63,618) 

405,658 

$ 342.040 



GREATER ALBANY PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
LINN COUNTY, OREGON 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
PROPRIETARY NET ASSETS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2007 

INSURANCE RESERVE FUND 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Receipts from Customers and Users 

Payments to Employees 
Payments to Suppliers 

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Interest Received 

Net Cash from Investing Activities 

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JULY 1, 2006 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JUNE 30, 2007 

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided 
By Operating Activities 

Operating Income 
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash 

Increase in Accounts Receivable 

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities 

Governmental Activities -
Internal Service 

$ 4,512 
(86,913) 

0 

(82,401) 

19,069 

19,069 

{63,332) 

404,838 

$ 341,506 

$ {82,687) 

$ (82,401) 

Sec ac~utnranying noks tr, basic financial statrnm1ls. 

-12-
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GREATER ALBANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT 
LIN'N COlJNTY, OREGON 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The financial statements of the district have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to government units. The Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and 
financial reporting principles. The more significant of the district's accounting policies are described below. 

REPORTING DISTRICT 

The Greater Albany Public School District functions as an operational education organization consisting of nineteen 
elementary, secondary, and high schools. The District was organized under provisions of Oregon Statutes Chapter 
332 for the purpose of operating elementary and secondary schools. The Greater Albany Public School District's 
Board of Education is the basic level of government, which has financial accountability and control over all activities 
within District boundaries. As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements 
present Greater Albany Public School District (the primary government) and would include any component units. 
Component units, as established by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 39, are 
separate organizations that are included in the District's reporting District because of the significance of their 
operational or financial relationships with the District. There are no component units. 

BASIS OF PRESENTATION - FUND ACCOUNTING 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (GWFS) 

The Statement of Net Assets and Statements of Activities displays information about the reporting government 
as a whole. 

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities were prepared using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities 
resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place. 

Program Revenues included in the Statement of Activities derive directly from the program itself or from parties 
outside the District's taxpayers or citizenry, as a whole; program revenues reduce the cost of the function to be 
financed from general revenues. 

All direct expenses are reported by function in the Statement of Activities. Direct expenses are those that are 
clearly identifiable with a function. Interest of general long-term debt is considered an indirect expense and is 
reported separately on the Statement of Activities. In the process of aggregating data for the Statement of Net 
Assets and the Statement of Activities, some amounts reported as interfund activity and balances in the funds 
were eliminated or reclassified. Interfund receivables and payables were eliminated to minimize the "grossing 
up" effect on assets and liabilities. 

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The accounts of are organized and operated on the basis of funds. A fund is a self-balancing set of accounts. 
Fund accounting segregates funds according to their intended purpose and is used to aid management in 
demonstrating compliance with finance-related legal and contractual provisions. The minimum number of funds 
is maintained consistent with legal and managerial requirements. 
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GREATER ALBANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT 
LINN COUNTY, OREGON 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

GOVERJ\TMENTAL FUND TYPES 

Governmental funds are used to account for general government activities. Governmental fund types use the 
flow of current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the 
modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., when they are 
"measurable and available"). "Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can be determined and 
"available" means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current 
period. Expenditures are recorded when the liability is incurred, except for unmatured interest on general long­
term debt which is recognized when due, interfund transactions, and certain compensated absences and claims 
and judgments which are recognized as expenditures because they will be liquidated with expendable financial 
resources. 

Revenues susceptible to accrual are interest, state, county and local shared revenue and federal and state grants. 
Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been incurred and 
all other grant requirements have been met. 

The following major governmental funds are reported: 

GENERAL FUND 

This fund accounts for all financial resources and expenditures except those required to be accounted for in 
another fund. The principal revenue sources are property taxes and an apportionment from the State of Oregon 
School Support Fund. 

GRANTFUNDS 

The Grants Fund includes Title I, Title VI, and other federally financed special project funds. The principal 
sources of revenue are grants from the federal an Oregon governmental agencies. The primary uses of revenue 
are salaries and supplies specifically requested with application for grant. 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND #3 

This fund holds the proceeds from the 2006 General Obligation Bonds. The projects to be undertaken with the 
proceeds from this bond issuance will be paid for out of this fund. 

Additionally, the following funds are reported: 

OTHER GOVERNMENT AL FUNDS 

The Other Governmental Funds account for the aggregate of all non-major governmental funds. 

INTERNAL SERVICE FUND 

Insurance Reserve Fund - This fund's primary source of revenue are interest and interfund transfers. 
Expenditures are for employee claims and insurance deductibles. 
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GREATER ALBANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT 
LINN COCNTY. OREGON 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATLMENTS 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

MEASUREMENT FOCUS ANTI BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

Government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported usmg the economic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the 
time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Non-exchange transactions, in 
which the District receives value without giving equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants, 
entitlements and donations. On the accrual basis of accounting, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the 
fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the 
fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Under terms of grant a6rreements, the District 
funds certain programs by a combination of specific cost-reimbursement grants and general revenues. Thus, when 
program expenses are incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted net assets available to finance the program. 
It is policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to such programs and then general revenues. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and 
modified accrual basis of accounting. Under-this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available. 
All revenues reported in the governmental funds are considered to be available if they are collected within sixty days 
after year-end. Property taxes and interest are considered to be susceptible to accrual. Expenditures are recorded 
when the related fund 1iability is incurred. except for principal and interest on general long-term debt and claims and 
judgments, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they ha\e matured. Capital asset acquisitions are 
reported as expenditures in the governmental funds and proceeds from general long-term debt and acquisitions under 
capital leases are reported as other financing sources. 

Private sector standards of accounting and reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally are followed in the 
government-wide financial statements to the extent that these standards do not conflict or contradict the guidance of 
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. 

BUDGETS 

A budget is prepared and legally adopted for each go\·ernmcntal fund type on the modified accrual basis of 
accounting in the main program categories required by Oregon Local Budget Law. The budgets for all budgeted 
funds are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of 
America except the property taxes received after year-end not considered budgetary resources in the funds, 
inventory is expended when purchased, capital outlay is recorded as an expenditure rather than capitalized, and 
depreciation is not recorded on capital assets. A budget is not prepared for the agency funds as allowed by Oregon 
law. 

The budget process begins early in each fiscal year with the establishment of the budget committee. 
Recommendations are developed through late winter with the budget committee approving the budget in early 
spring. Public notices of the budget hearing are generally published in spring with a public hearing being held 
approximately three weeks later. The Board may amend the budget prior to adoption. However, budgeted 
expenditures for each fund may not be increased by more than ten percent without re-publication. The budget is 
then adopted, appropriations are made, and the tax levy declared no later than June 30th. 
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GREATER ALBANY PCBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT 
LINN COUNTY. OREGON 

NOTES TO BASIC FINAKCIAL STATEi\1ENTS 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTL\lJED) 

Expenditure budgets are appropriated at the following levels for each fund: Instruction, Support Services, 
Enterprise & Community Services, Facilities Acquisition and Construction, Other Uses - Debt Service and Intcrfund 
Transfers, and Operating Contingency. 

Expenditures can not legally exceed the adopted appropriation levels except in the case of grants which could not be 
estimated at the time of budget adoption. Appropriations lapse at the fiscal year-end. Management may amend line 
items in the budget without Board appro-val as long as appropriation levels (the legal level of control) arc not 
changed. Supplemental appropriations may occur if the Board approves tl1cm clue to unforsecn circumstances which 
could not be determined at the time the budget was adopted. 

Budget amounts shmv11 in the basic financial statements reflect the original budgeted appropnat1on amounts. 
Expenditures of the various funds were within authorized appropriations for the year ended June 30, 2007, except 
for the Lunch Fund, which over-expended Enterprise and Community Services by $70,196 and Capital 
Improvements Fund #3 which over-expended Facilities Acquisition and Construction by $2,259,214. 

PROPERTY TAXES RECEIVABLE 

Uncollected real and personal property taxes arc reflected on the statement of net assets and the balance sheet as 
receivables. Uncollected taxes arc deemed to be substantially collectible or recoverable through liens. All property 
taxes receivable are due from property o,vners within the District. 

Under state law, county governments are responsible for extending authorized property tax levies, computing tax 
rates, billing and collecting all property taxes, and making periodic distributions of collections to entities levying 
taxes. Property taxes become a lien against the property wl1cn levied on July 1 of each year and arc payable in three 
installments due on November 15, February 15 and May 15. Property tax collections arc distributed montl1ly except 
for November, when such distributions are made weekly. 

GRANTS 

Unrcimburscd expenditures due from f,'Tantor agencies arc reflected in tl1c basic financial statements as receivables 
and revenues. Grant revenues arc recorded at the time eligible expenditures arc incurred. Cash received from 
grantor agencies in excess of related grant expenditures are recorded as unearned revenue on the statement of net 
assets and the balance sheet. 

SUPPLY TKVENTORJES 

Supply inventories purchased are valued at the lower of invoice cost (first-in, first-out) or market. Supply 
inventories are recorded as expenditures when used, rather than when purchased. 
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GREATER ALBANY FL~BLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT 
LINN COUNTY. OREGON 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL ST A TU\IENTS 

1. SUMMA.RY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

RETIREMENT PLAN 

Substantially all employees are participants in PERS. Contributions to PERS are made on a current basis as 
required by the plan and are charged to expenditures as funded. The Board of Directors, through contract 
negotiations, authorized the District to offer early retirement benefits to all non-temporary employees. Expenditures 
are recorded in the governmental funds as the incentive payments and related insurance premiums are incurred. The 
present value of future incentive payments and estimate insurance benefits is recorded in the Statement of Net 
Assets. 

CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital assets are recorded at original cost or estimated original cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at their 
estimated fair market value on the date donated. Capital assets arc defined as assets with an initial, individual cost 
or more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Interest incuncd during construction is not 
capitalized. The cost of routine maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or materially 
extend asset lives are charged to expenditures as incurred and not capitalized. Capital assets are depreciated using 
the straight-line method over the following useful lives: 

Buildings and improvements 10 to 50 years 
Vehicles and Equipment 5 to 30 years 

USE OF ESTIMATES 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted m the United 
States of America requires the management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts or 
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and 
reported amounts of revenues, expenditures and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ 
from those estimates. 

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 

In the government-wide financial statements long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as 
liabilities in the governmental activities. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and 
amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable arc reported net of the 
applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the 
lire of the related debt. As permitted by GASH Statement No. 34 the cost of bond issuance is amortized 
prospectively from the date of adoption of GASB Statement No. 34. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond 
issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. 
Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are 
reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are 
reported as debt service expenditures. 
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GREATER ALBANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT 
LINN COUNTY, OREGON 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

NET ASSETS 

Net assets comprise the various net earnings from operations, non-operating revenues, expenses and contributions of 
capital. Net assets are classified in the following three categories: 

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - consists of all capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 
and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds or other borrowings that are attributable to the 
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. 

Restricted - consists of external constraints placed on asset use by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws 
or regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by law through constitutional provisions or 
enabling legislation. There are assets restricted for debt service and capital projects. 

Unrestricted net assets - consists of all other assets that are not included in the other categories previously 
mentioned. 

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

DEPOSITS 
Deposits with financial institutions are comprised of bank demand deposits and certificates of deposit. The total 
bank balance per the bank statements was $272. All of these deposits were covered by federal depository insurance. 
For deposits in excess of federal depository insurance, Oregon Revised Statutes require the depositor institution to 
maintain on deposit with the collateral pool manager securities having a value not less than 25% of the outstanding 
certificates of participation issued by the pool manager. All bank balances in excess of federal depository insurance, 
if any, are collateralized by securities held by an District other than the financial institution as an agent of the bank. 
This collateral is held in the name of the bank(s). State statutes govern cash management policies, because the 
District does not have an official investment policy. Statutes authorize investing in banker's acceptances, time 
certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements, obligations of the United States and its agencies and 
instrumentalities, and the Oregon State Treasurer's Local Government Investment Pool. 

INVESTMENTS 
The State Treasurer's Local Government Investment Pool is not registered with the U.S. Securities and Exchange 
Commission as an investment company. The Oregon Revised Statutes and the Oregon Investment Council govern 
the State's investment policies. The State Treasurer is the investment officer for the Council and is responsible for 
all funds in the State Treasury. These funds must be invested, and the investments managed, as a prudent investor 
would, exercising reasonable care, skill and caution. Investments in the Fund are further governed by portfolio 
guidelines issued by the Oregon Short-Term Fund Board, which establish diversification percentages and specify the 
types and maturities of investments. The portfolio guidelines permit securities lending transactions as well as 
investments in repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreements. The fund was in compliance with all 
portfolio guidelines at June 30, 2007. 

Amounts in the State Treasurer's Local Government Investment Pool are not required to be collateralized. There is 
no material difference between the fair value of the District's position in the State Treasurer's Local Government 
Investment Pool and the value of the pool shares at June 30, 2007. There were no known violations of legal or 
contractual provisions for deposits and investments during the fiscal year. 
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GREATER ALBANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT 
LINN COUNTY, OREGON 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 

Cash and Investments at June 30, 2007, (recorded at fair value) consisted of: 

Deposits With Financial Institutions: 

Petty Cash 

Demand Deposits: 

Checking 

Money Market 

Cash with Fiscal Agents 

Investments 

Total 

2007 

$ 20,330 

(896,978) 

52,053 
420,604 

76,270,929 

$ 75,866,938 

There were the following investments and maturities: 

Investment Type Fair Value 
Investment Maturities (in months) 

Less than 3 3-18 18-59 

State Treasurer's Investment Pool 
U.S. Government Bonds 

$ 25,114,291 

51,156,638 

$ 25,114,291 

9,031,803 

$ 
36,302,008 

$ 
5,822,827 

Total $ 76,270,929 $ 34,146,094 $ 36,302,008 $ 5,822,827 

Interest Rate Risk 

Oregon Revised Statutes require investments to not exceed a maturity of 18 months, except when the local 
government has adopted a written investment policy that was submitted to and reviewed by the OSTFB. The 
District does not have any investments that have a maturity date. 

Credit Risk 

Oregon Revised Statutes does not limit investments as to credit rating for securities purchased from US Government 
Agencies or USG SE. The State Investment Pool is not rated. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

At June 30, 2007, 3% of total investments were in the State Treasurer's Investment Pool, and 67% in U.S. 
Government Bonds. State statutes do not limit the percentage of investments in either of these instruments. Oregon 
Revised Statutes require no more than 25 percent of the moneys of local government to be invested in bankers' 
acceptances of any qualified financial institution. At June 30, 2007, there was compliance with all percentage 
restrictions. 
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GREATER ALBANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT 
LINN COUNTY, OREGON 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

3. ACCOUNTS/GRANTS RECENABLE 

Special revenue fund grants receivable are comprised of claims for reimbursement of costs under various federal and 
state grant programs. 

4. CAPITAL ASSETS 

The changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2007 are as follows: 

Land (non depreciable) 
Buildings 
Site Improvements 
Equipment & Vehicles 

Accumulated Depreciation 
Totals 

Capital Assets 
7/1/2006 

$ 1,557,919 
38,742,939 

1,163,141 
4,025,631 

45,489,630 

(27,337,013) 
$ 18,152,617 

$ 

Additions 

$ 

21,038 
726,031 

747,069 

(894,526) 

Deletions 

(200,730) 

(200,730) 

200,736 

Capital Assets 
6/30/2007 

$ 1,557,919 
38,742,939 

1,184,179 
4,550,932 

46,035,969 

(28,030,803) 
$ 18,005,166 

Accumulated Depreciation 
Depreciation was allocated to the functions as followed: 

Instruction 
Support Services 
Enterprise and Community Services 

$ 626,168 
223,632 
44,726 

Total $ 894,526 

5. RETIREMENT PLAN 

Contributions are made to the Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF), a cost-sharing multiple­
employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Oregon Public Employees 
Retirement System (PERS). PERS provides retirement and disability benefits, post employment health care benefits, 
annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. 

PERS is administered under Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) Chapter 238. ORS 238.620 establishes the Public 
Employees Retirement Board as the governing body of PERS. PERS issues a publicly available financial report that 
includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That report can he obtained hy writing to 
PERS, P.O. Box 23700, Tigard, OR 9728 l-3700 or hy calling 1-503-598-7377. 

Members of PERS are required to contribute 6% of their salary covered under the plan. The District is required by 
ORS 238.225 to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The employer contribution rate effective July 1, 2005 
was 6.72%,. The contributions to the plan for the years ending June 30. 2007, 2006 and 2005 were $2,573,241, 
$2,386,...120, and $1,020,928, respectively. and were equal to the required contributions for each year. 

-20-



GREATER ALBANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT 
LL'.1N COUNTY OREGON 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

5. RETIREMENT PLAN (CONTINUED) 

Members of PERS are required to contribute 6% of their salary covered under the plan. The District is required by 
ORS 238.225 to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The rate effective July 1, 2005 is 6.72% of salary 
covered under the plan for Tier 1 and Tier 2 employees and 7.23% for employees covered under the Oregon Public 
Services Retirement Plan (OPSRP). In June, 2004 the District participated in the Oregon school Boards Association 
limited tax pension obligation bond issues to finance a portion of the estimated unfunded PERS actuarial liability 
(the "UAL"). $45,885,000 was borrowed, reducing the rate paid to PERS to 2.78% on Tier 1 and Tier 2 employees. 
The contribution requirements for plan members are established by ORS Chapter 238 and may be amended by an 
act of the Oregon Legislature. 

6. LONG-TERM DEBT 

BONDS PAYABLE: 

General Obligation Bonds 

General obligation bonds are issued to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities. 
The original amount of general obligation bonds issued in prior years is $15,210,000. 

On December 20, 2006, the General Obligation Bonds, Series 2006 was issued for $55,000,000, with interest rates 
ranging from 3.85-5.0%. 

Pension Obligation Bonds 

In 2004 $45,885,000 of limited tax pension obligation bonds were issued to finance its unfunded actuarially accrued 
liability (UAL) with the State of Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (PERS). The issuance of the bonds 
was considered an advance refunding of the UAL. The actual savings realized over the life of the bonds is uncertain 
because of the various legislative changes and legal issues pending with the PERS system which could impact the 
future required contribution rate. 

Changes in bonds outstanding are as follows: 

Issue Date 
Interest 
Rates 

Original 
Issue 

Outstanding 
July L 
2006 Issued 

Matured 
And 

Redeemed 

Outstanding 
June 30, 

2007 

Series 1996 4.75-5.35 $15,210,000 $ 2,175,000 $ $ 1,055,000 $ 1,120,000 

Series 2004 3.25-5.528 45,885,000 45,885,000 45,885,000 

Series 2006 3.85-5.00 55,000,000 55,000,000 55.000,000 

$48,060,000 $ 55,000,000 $ 1,055,000 $ 102.005,000 
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GREATER ALBANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT 
LINN COUNTY, OREGON 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

6. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 

Future maturities of bonds are payable as follows: 

Fiscal Year 

Ending June 30, Principal Interest 

2008 $ 3,995,000 $ 6,229,521 

2009 4,305,000 4,840,363 

2010 4,885,000 4,669,131 

2011 5,515,000 4,472,141 

2012 6,040,000 4,249,321 

2013-2017 39,825,000 16,503,870 

2018-2022 12,600,000 9,078,325 

2023-2027 22,010,000 4,682,216 

2028 2,830,000 156,442 

Total 102,005,000 $ 54,881,330 

Premium 3,513,878 

Total $ 105,518,878 

Qualified Zone Academy Bonds (QZAB) Series 2004 and Series 2007 

The District issued $1,451,595 of Qualified Zone Academy Bonds in previous years, and an additional $1,000,000 
during 2006-07. There are annual payments totaling $96,773 through July 1, 2020 on the first bond issue, and 
payments of $62,500 through 2023 on the second bond issue. 

NOTES PAYABLE: 

1993 Financing Agreement 
In 1993, a Bancroft note payable for $168,482 to the City of Albany was incurred. The principal payments on the 
note are due semi-annually, in varying amounts, through 2013, with an interest rate of 6.05%. 

Future maturities of notes payable and QZAB are as follows: 

1993 Note QZAB Total 
2007-08 $ 7,248 $ 159,273 $ 166,521 
2008-09 7,702 159,273 166,975 
2009-10 8,185 159,273 167,458 
2010-11 8,697 ]59,273 l 67,970 
2011-12 9,240 159,273 l 68,513 
2012-17 7,114 796,365 803,479 
2017-22 602,819 602,819 

2022-23 ----- 62,500 62,500 

Total 48,186 2,258,049 2,306,235 
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GREATER ALHANY PL:HLJC SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Lll\'1\ COUNTY, OREGON 

NOTES TO HASIC: FJJ\ANCIAL STATEMENTS 

LLONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED} 

CAPITAL LEASES 

Various lease agreements have been entered into with interest rates varying from 3.0% to 5.3%. These agreements 
qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes and have been recorded at the present value of the future minimum 
lease payments as of the inception date in the Statement of Net Assets. 

Year Ending CA PIT AL LEASES 

June 30. 

2008 

2009 

2010 

2011 

2012 

2013-17 

Principal 

$ 205,647 

172,909 

182,491 

188,406 

134,629 

143,514 

$ 

Interest 

43,244 

34,202 

24,620 

18,705 

11,056 

7,235 

$ 

Total 

248,891 

207,111 

207, 111 

207,111 

145,685 

150,749 

$ 1,027,596 $ 139,062 $ 1,166,658 

Total long-tenn liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2007 was as follows: 

Beginning 

Balance Additons Reductions 

Ending 

Balance 
Due Within 

One Year 

Bonds Payable $ 48,060,000 

Qualified Zone Academy Bonds I,354,822 

Capital Leases 872,725 

Notes Payable 57,497 

$ 58,513,878 

1,000,000 

331,000 

$ 1,055,000 

96,773 

176,128 

9,311 

$105,518,878 

2,258.049 

1,027,597 

48,186 

s 3,995,000 

159.273 

205,647 

7248 

Total Long-tenn Liabilities $ 50,345,044 $ 59,844,878 $ 1,337,212 $108,852,710 s 4,367,168 

7. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

The District participates in a number of federally assisted !,'Tant programs. These pro!,1Tams are subject to program 
compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. The federal audits for these programs for the year ended 
June 30, 2007 have not been conducted. Accordingly, compliance with grant requirements will be established at 
some future date. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be 
determined at this time, although the District expects such amounts to be immaterial. 

The District receives a substantial portion of its operating funding from the State of Oregon. State funding is 
determined through state wide revenue projections that are paid to individual school districts based on pupil counts 
and other factors in the state school fund revenue formula. Since these projections and pupil counts fluctuate they 
can cause the District to either have increases or decreases in revenue. Due to these future uncertainties at the state 
level, the future effect on the District's operations can not be determined. 
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GREATER ALBANY P-CBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT 
LINN COUKTY. OREGON 

NOTES TO BASIC Fl);A7\CIAL STATEMENTS 

8. PROPERTY TAX LIMITATIONS 

The State of Oregon imposes a constitutional limit on property taxes for schools and nonschool government 
operations. School operations include community colleges, local school districts, and education service districts. 
The limitation provides that property taxes for school operations arc limited to $5.00 for each $1,000 of property 
market value. This limitation does not apply to taxes levied for principal and interest on general obligation bonded 
debt. The result of this requirement has been that school districts have become more dependent upon state funding 
and less dependent upon property tax revenues as their major source of operating revenue. 

The State further reduced property taxes by replacing the previous constitutional limits on tax bases with a rate and 
value limit in 1997. This reduction is accomplished by rolling property values back to their 1995-96 rnlues less 
10% and limiting future tax value growth of each property to no more than 3% per year, subject to certain 
exceptions. Taxes levied to support bonded debt are exempted from the reductions. The State Constitution sets 
restrictive voter approval requirements for most tax and many fee increases and new bond issues, and requires the 
State to minimize the impact to school districts from the impact of the tax cuts. 

9. I'REI'AJD PERS LIABILITY 

As a result of the issuance of the 2004 Limited Tax Pension Obligation Bonds, a Prepaid PERS Liability is reported 
in the Statement of Net Assets. The prepaid Jiabiiity is equal to the initial S46,612,192 payment made to PERS from 
the bond proceeds, less accumulated amortization. Annual amortization is being calculated on a straight-line basis 
over the life of the pension obligation bonds. 

10. EARLY RETIREME?\T PLAN 

There is an early retirement plan for qualified employees. Expenditures are recorded as the incentive payments and 
related insurance premiums are incurred. In order to qualify for the plan, an employee must be eligible for 
retirement under PERS. Eligible employees will be paid for a specified time. The amount of compensation per 
month is equal to 1 % of the contractual yearly salary the retiree would have received if fully employed with the 
District, along with related insurance premiums. Early retirement pro6:rram costs are recorded as expenditures and 
funded on a pay as you go basis. The actuarial present value of vested and non-vested accumulated benefits is not 
available. At June 30, 2007. the estimated liability is $3,781,339. 

11. INTERGOVERi~ME?\TAL AGENCY 

In 1993 an intergovernmental agreement was entered into to build, operate. and maintain the Linn Regional Fueling 
Facility (LRFF) along with Linn Count, the City of Albany, Linn-Benton Community College, and Linn-Benton­
Lincoln Education Service District. The a6:rreement specified that the land and improvements constituting the 
regional fueling facility shall be owned by Linn County and that the capital costs of designing and brnlding the 
facility will be repaid by all parties through surcharges and capital cost payments. The capital cost payments will 
end when the total capital cost of the facility has been reached. 

After Five years of participation in the agreement, a party becomes vested as a capital cost shareholder. If, after the 
five-year point, a party withdraws from the agreement, the other parties agree to pay the withdrawing party an 
amount equal to 80% of that party's total capital cost payments. Operation and maintenance costs are shared by the 
parties proportionately in accordance with each party's usage of the facility. These costs are covered through 
surcharges and fees set by the Linn Regional Fueling Facility Board. 
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GREATER ALBANY PCBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT 
LINN COUNTY. OREGON 

NOTES TO BASIC Fl:-JANCIAL STATEMENTS 

11. INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGENCY (Continued) 

The District does not have an equity interest in the Facility, and therefore does not report an equity interest in the 
basic financial statements. At June 30, 2007, the Linn Regional Fueling Facility's equity balance as reported in its 
audited financial statement totaled $482.650. A copy of the Linn Regional Fueling Faci I ity's audit report may be 
obtained from Linn County. 

12. SELF-INSURANCE 

The District is self-insured for public liability and property damage claims on the first S250.000 of any accident and 
for the amount, if any, in excess of stated policy limits. The District canies liability insurance for amounts not 
otherwise self-insured. Estimated losses on claims are charged to expense in the period the loss is detem1inable. 

The District also provides self-insurance for benefits to unemployed fom1er employees through participation in a 
risk pool. One percent of payroll is contributed to the pool. Contributions in excess or actual unemployment 
benefits paid are held in the Insurance Reserve Fund. 

13. DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN 

A deferred compensation plan is available to employees wherein they may execute an individual agreement with 
The District for amounts earned by them to not be paid until a future elate when certain circumstances are met. 
These circumstances are: termination by reason of death, disability, resignation, or retirement. The deferred 
compensation plan is one which is authorized under IRC Section 457 and has been approved in its specifics by a 
private ruling from the Internal Revenue Service. The assets of the plan are held by the administrator for the sole 
benefit of the plan participants and are not considered assets or liabilities of The District. 
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GREATER ALBANY Pl1BLIC SCHOOLS 
LINN COUNTY. OREGON 

STATEJ\.U:Yf' OF REVENl'.ES. EXPENDJTlJRES ANT) CHANGES I:\ FlJNJ) BAL\"1CE 
BUDGET AND .\CTlJAL 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2007 

GENERAL Ft::\1) 

V/\Rl:\NCE 
OR!GIN\l. FIN \L POSITIVE 
BUDGET BUDGET AC!F".L (NEGATIVE) 

REVENUES: 
Local Sources $ 16,250,000 $ 16,250,000 $ 18,546,793 $ 2,296,793 
Intermediate Sources 30,000 30,000 47,839 17,839 

State Somccs 39,758.766 39.758.766 38,894,792 (86ci.974) 
Federal Sources 925.000 925.000 972,036 47.036 

Total Revenues 56,963.766 56.963.766 58,461,460 1,497,694 

EXPENDJT[:RES: 
Instruction 38,304,586 37,954.586 (1) 37.763.824 190.762 

Support Services 20,848,570 21,198,570 (]) 20,967,508 231,062 
Enterprise and Community Services 202,844 202.844 (1) 193.543 9,301 
Facilities Acquisition & Construction 2,053,385 2,053,385 (1) 1.033.147 1.020.238 
Contingincies 2,046,082 2,046,082 (1) 

Total E:-;pcnditures 63,455 467 63.4'5.467 59.958.022 431.125 

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (6,491,701) (6,491,701) (1,496,562) 1.066,569 

OTHER FINA?\CING SOURCES (CSES) 
Sale of Assets 5.000 5.000 16 (4.984) 
Trans fcrs Out (559.500) (559.500) (1) (552.015) 7,485 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (554,500) (554,500) (551,999) 2,501 

Net Change in Fund Balance (7,046,201) (7,046,201) (2,048,561) 4,997,640 

Beginning rum! Balance 8,046 201 8,046.201 8,475,276 429.075 

Ending Fund Balance $ 1,000,000 $ 1,000.000 $ 6.426.715 $ 5,426,715 

(]) Appropriation level 
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GREATER ALBANY PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
LINN COUNTY, OREGON 

SCHEDULE OFREVENlJES, EXPENDITURES AND CHA!\'GES IN FUND BALANCE 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2007 

GRA',rr FUNDS 

VARIANCE 

ORIGNl/\1, TTN/\L l'USITIVE 
Rf,:VENUES llUDGET IWDm:T 1\CTUJ\L (NJ C,/\TIVE) 

From Local Sources: $ 440,000 $ 440,000 $ 329,104 $ (110,896) 

From Intennediate Sources 75,000 75,000 60,969 (14,031) 

From S!:1lt' Stmrccs: 200,000 200,000 132,434 (67,5(i(i) 

From Federal Sources: 4,435,080 4,435,080 3,322,610 (1,112,470) 

Total Revenue 5150,080 5,150,080 3,845,117 (1,304,963) 

EXPENDITCRES 
Instrnc l1, )JL 

Suppurl Services 

EnteIJJrise & Community Services 

Contingency 

, 433,478 

2,497,992 
68,610 

450,000 

\433,478 
2,497,992 

68,610 
450,000 

(l) 
(!) 
(1) 
(1) 

2,561,293 
1)33,257 

65,966 
0 

872,185 
%4,735 

2,644 
450,000 

Total Expenditures 6.450,080 6,450,080 4.160,516 2.289,564 

Nd Change 111 Furn! llcthmce 1. l YJOJlOO) 1 l J00,000) (315,399) 984,601 

Beginning Fund Balance 1,300,000 1,300,000 819,340 (480,660) 

Ending Fund Balance $ 0 $ 0 $ 503,941 $ 503,941 

(1) /\pproprrn,un lxvcl 
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GREATER ALBA.l\Y PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
LINN COUNTY. OREGON 

SCHEDlLE OF REVEl'WES EXPENDITlRES Al'iD CHA.l\GES IN FUND HALA'lCE 
BUDGET A'iD ACTUAL 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2007 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND #3 

OR!GfNAL 
BUDGET 

FI:\AL 

BUDGET ACTliAL 

VARIA\CE 

POSfTfVE 
(NEGATIVE) 

REVENliES: 
Total Local Revenue: $ 0 $ 0 $ U62 342 $ l.362.342 

Total Revenue 0 0 1,362,342 1,362,342 

EXPENDITURES: 
Support Services 
facilities Acquisition and Construction 

0 
0 

0 
0 

(!) 
(I) 

322,571 
L 936.643 

(322,571) 
(1,936.643) 

Total Expenditures 0 0 2,259,214 (2,259,214) 

OTHER FL'iANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Bond Proceeds 
Bond Premium 

0 
0 

0 
0 

55,000,000 

3,513,878 
55,000,000 

3,51'-878 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 0 0 58,513,878 58,513,878 

:'\et Change in Fund Balance 0 0 57.617.006 57.617,006 

Beginning Fund Balance 0 () () 0 

Ending Fund Balance $ 0 $ 0 $ 57,617,006 $ 57,617.006 

(I) Appropriation Level 
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GREATER ALBANY PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
LINN COUNTY, OREGON 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

June 30, 2007 

ASSETS: 

STUDENT 

ACTIVITY 

FUND 

ENERGY 

CONSERVATION 

FUND 

E-RATE 

FUNDING 

FUND 

SCHOOL 

LUNCH 

FUND 

DEBT 

SERVICE 

FUND 

Cash and Investments 

Account5 Receivable 

$ 478,982 

22,397 

$ 123,878 

325,573 

$ 109,774 

0 

$ 24,967 

310,440 

$ 80,712 

86,708 

Total Assets $ 501,379 $ 449,451 $ !09,774 $ 335,407 $ 167,420 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES: 

Liabilities: 

Deposits Payable 

Deferred Revenue 

$ 0 

0 

$ 0 
0 

$ 0 

0 

$ 24,964 

0 

$ 0 

72,372 

Total Liabilities 0 0 0 24,964 72,372 

Fund Balances: 

Unreserved Designated for 

Subsequent Years' Expenditures 501,379 449,451 109,774 310,443 95,048 

Total Fund Balances 501,379 449,451 109,774 310,443 95,048 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 501,379 $ 449,451 $ 109,774 $ 335,407 $ 167,420 
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PERS 

DEBT 

Sl<RV!CI 

CAPITAL 

fMPRO\'EtvIENT 

FUND I 

CAPITAL 

IMPROVEMENT 

FUND 1/2 TOT"\!, 

$ 919,653 

0 

$ 1.494,389 

0 

$ 16 

0 

s 3,232,371 

745,118 

$ 919,653 $ 1,494,389 $ 16 $ 3,977,489 

$ 0 

0 

() 

$ 0 

0 

0 

$ 0 

0 

0 

$ 24,964 

72,372 

97,336 

919,653 

'!I'! .653 

1,494,389 16 

16 

3,880,153 

_,_880.15.1 

$ 919,653 $ 1,494,389 $ 16 ====== $ 3.977,489======== 
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GREATER ALBANY PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

LINN COUNTY, OREGON 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2007 

REVENUES: 

STUDENT 

ACTIVITY 

FUND 

BUS 

REPLACEMENT 

FUND 

ENERGY 

CONSERVATION 

HJND 

E-RATE 

FUNDING 

FUND 

SCHOOL 

LUNCH 

FUND 

From Local Sources 

From State Sources 

From Federal Sources 

$ 1,665,976 

0 

0 

$ 179 

0 

0 

$ 0 

155,680 

0 

$ 162,863 

0 

0 

$ 967,294 

0 

1,575,702 

Total Revenues 1,665,976 179 155,680 162,863 2,542,996 

EXPENDITURES: 
Instruction 
Support Services 
Enterprise and Community Services 
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 
Debt Service 

1,648,618 
72,075 

0 
0 
0 

0 
492,421 

0 
0 

219,213 

0 
0 
0 

833,859 
96,773 

0 
217,682 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 

2,798,446 
0 
0 

Total Expenditures 1,720,693 711,634 930,632 217,682 2,798,446 

Excess of Revenues 

Over, (Under) Expenditures (54,717) (711,455) (774,952) (54,819) (255,450) 

Other Financing Sources, (Uses): 

Transfers In 

Loan Proceeds 

977 

0 

380,455 

331,000 

125,000 

1,000,000 

0 

0 

31,583 

0 

Total Other Financing Sources, (Uses) 977 711,455 1,125,000 0 31,583 

Net Change in Fund Balance (53,740) 0 350,048 (54,819) (223,867) 

Beginning Fund Balances 555,119 0 99,403 164,593 534,310 

Ending Fund Balances $ 501,379 $ 0 $ 449,451 $ 109,774 $ 310,443 
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DEBT 
SERVICE 

FUND 

PERS 
REF1NANCE 

FUND 

CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT 

FUND#l 

CAPITAL 

IMPROVEMENT 
FUND#2 TOTAL 

$ 1,161,028 

0 

0 

$ 2,415,476 

0 

0 

$ 72,004 

0 

0 

$ 3 

0 

0 

$ 6,444,823 

155,680 

1,575,702 

1,161,028 2,415,476 72,004 3 8,176,205 

0 
0 
0 
0 

1,182,128 

0 
0 
0 
0 

2,453,487 

0 
0 
0 

780 
0 

0 
350 

0 
0 
0 

1,648,618 
782,528 

2,798,446 
834,639 

3,951,601 

1,182,128 2,453,487 780 350 10,015,832 

(21,100) (38,011) 71,224 (347) (1,839,627) 

14,000 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

552,015 

1,331,000 

14,000 0 0 0 1,883,015 

(7,100) (38,011) 71,224 (347) 43,388 

l 02,148 957,664 1,423,165 363 3,836,765 

$ 95,048 $ 919,653 $ 1,494,389 $ 16 $ 3,880,153 
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GREATER ALBA:\Y PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
LINN CO-Cl\TY, OREGON 

SCHEDU,E OFRKVE:\l;Es, EXPENDITl.RES AND CHA'\'GES TN Fli:\'D BALA\CE 
BUDGET ,\\D ACTUAL 

For the Year Ended .Tune 30, 2007 

REVENUES• 

From Local Sources• 

T,,tal Local Sources 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES• 

Instruction 

Support S.ervices 

Contingency 

Total Expenditures 

Excess ofReYenues Over, (Under) 

Expenditures 

Other Fin:rncing Sources, (Uses) 
Transkrs In 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

Beginning Fund Balance 

linding FunJ B:,lancc 

(1) Appropriation Level 

STUDENT ACTIVITY FUND 

ORIGNLL1.L 

BUDGET 

FI\:Al 

BUDGET ACTUAL 

s 1.ssn.000 

L55u,CJ00 

s l .5511 000 

1550.000 

s uir,s_,nc, 

l,C,Ci5,'J76 

1,664,800 

75,200 

411.500 

1,664,800 

7 5 .200 

411.,00 

(1) 
( 1) 

(1) 

1,648,618 

72.o75 

0 

2, l 51,500 2,15)500 1,720,693 

(601,500) (601,500) (54,717) 

1.5/JO 1500 977 

(600,000) (600,000) (53,740) 

600,000 600.000 555.119 

s 0 $ 0 $ 5111.379 

VARIANCE 
POSlTIVE 

(NEGATIVE) 

s 115.97(> 

l 15,'!7(, 

16.182 

3,125 

411.500 

430,807 

546.783 

(523) 

546,260 

(44.881) 

s 51>1.37'J 
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GREATER ALBANY PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
LINN COUNTY, OREGON 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES EXPENDITlJRES A:'1/D CHANGES TN FUND BALANCE 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2007 

BLSREPLACEME~TFUND 

VARIANCE 

ORI(;[NAL 

BUDGET 

FINAL 

BUDGET ACTUAL 

POSITIVE 

(NEGATIVE) 

REVENUES: 

From Local Sources: 

Interest nn Investments s 0 $ 0 $ 179 $ 179 

Total Local Revenue: Ii u 179 179 

Total Revenue 0 0 179 179 

EXPENDIT1JRFS: 

Support Sen ic'.CS 

Debt Servic-e 

515,000 

234,000 

515,00U 

234,000 

( I l 

( l ) 
492,421 

219,213 

22.5"79 

14,787 

Total Expenditures 749,000 749,000 711,634 37,366 

Excess of Revenues Over, (Under) 

Expenditures (749,000 J (749,000 J (711,455) 37,515 

Other Financing Sources, (Uses) 

Lease Purchase Proceeds 

Transfers In 
375,000 
374,000 

375,000 
374,000 

331,000 
380,455 

(44,000) 
6,455 

Total Other Fm3ncing Sources, ( l lscs) 749,000 749,000 711,455 (37,5:15 J 

Net Change in Fund Balance 0 0 0 0 

Beginning Fund Balance 0 0 0 0 

Ending f<'und lfalancc s (I .S u s u $ II 

(1) Appropriation Level 
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GREATER ALBAlW PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
LINN COUl\'TY, OREGON 

SCHEDULE OF REVE:\LES EXPENDITLRES AND CHA]';GES IN FUND BALANCE 
BUDGET A:\D ACTUAL 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2007 

ENERGY CONSERVATION FUND 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET 
FINAL 

BUDGET ACTCAL 

VJ\RIJ\~CE 

POSITIVE 

(NEGATIVE) 

REVENUES 

From l .ocal Sources: 

From State Sources 
$ 2.000 

225.UUU 
$ 2.000 

225.IJIJ0 
$ 0 

155./,80 
$ (2,000) 

((,9.J20) 

Total Revenue 227,000 227.000 155.680 (71-320) 

EXPENDITURES: 
Debt Sen·icc 

Facilities Acquisition anJ Construction 

220.000 

2.232.00U 

220,000 
2.232.U(JIJ 

(1) 
(1) 

%.773 
833.859 

123.227 
1.398.141 

Total Expenditures 2,452,000 2A52,000 930,632 1,521.368 

Excess of Revenues Over, (Cnder) 

Expenditures (2,225.000) (2,225,()00) (774,952) l A50JJ48 

Other Financing Sources, (Cscs) 

Transfers In 

Loan Proceeds 

125.000 

1,600,000 

125,000 

1,600,000 

125,000 

1,000,000 
0 

(600,000) 

Total Other Financing Sources. (Uses) 1,725.0IJ0 I. 725.000 1. 125,0(10 (600.000) 

Net Change in Fund Balance (500,00IJJ (500.000) 350,U48 850.048 

Beginning Fund Balance 500,000 500,000 99.403 (400,597) 

Ending Fund Balance $ () $ 0 $ 449.451 $ 449.451 

(I) Appropriation Level 
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GREATER ALBANY PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
LII\l\ COUNTY, OREGON 

SCHKDIILE OF REVENUES EXPENDITIIRES 1\1\D CHANGES Tl\ FllND BALANCE 
lHIDGET AND ACTll \L 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2007 

REVENUES: 
From Local Sources: 

Total Local Revenue: 

Total Revenue 

EXPENDITCRES: 
Support Services 
Contingency 

Total Expenditures 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

Beginning Fund Bal,mce 

Ending Fund Balance 

(1) Appropriation Level 

E-RUE FUNDING Fll).;D 

ORl(iINJ\L 

BUDGET 
FINAL 

BUDGET 

s 67,000 

67,000 

s 67,000 

67,000 

250,000 
67,000 

317,000 

(250,000) 

250,000 

0 s 

250,000 
67,000 

317,000 

(250,000) 

250,000 

0 

ACTUAL 

s [62,863 

162,863 

( I I 217,682 

/1 I 0 

217,682 

(54,819) 

164,593 

s 109,774 

VAR[J\NCF 

POSITIVE 
NEGATIVE) 

s 95,863 

95,863 

32J18 
67,000 

99,318 

195,181 

(85,407) 

s 109,774 
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GREATERALBA'.\y· PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
LINNCOU'.\1Y, OREGON 

SCHEDULE OF REVE.',UES, EXPENDITCRES AND CHANGES I\' FUND BALAI'iCE 
BUl)(;ET A\D .\CTUAL 

For the Year Ended .Tune 30, 2007 

SCHOOL LC.':CH FUND 

REVENUES: 

ORfGNL\I 

BlJlJC;FT 
FJNA!. 

BIHJC;J ACTlJAI 

VARIANCE 

POSITIVE 

(NEGATIVE) 

From Local Sources: 

From Federal Sources: 

$ 908,250 

1,425,000 
$ 908,250 

1,425,000 

$ 967,294 

L575,702 
s 59,044 

150,702 

Tota] R~v-.:mi-.:s 2.:=(~}._'251_) 2,333.~5 (1 2.542.9'"(1 209,74(, 

E:\'PENDTI'TJRES: 

Enterprise & Community Services 

Contingency 

2,578,250 

150,000 

2,728,250 ( 1) 

0 (]) 

2,798,446 

0 

(70,196) 

0 

Tota] Expenditures 2,72X,25iJ 2J28.251) 2,798,44(, (70, I '!61 

Excess of Revenues lh er, (lndcr) 

Expenditures (395,000) (395,000) (255,450) 139,550 

Other Financing Sources, (Uses) 

Transfers In 45.1100 45,000 31,583 (13,417) 

-''~ct Changc: in Fund H.ibn-.:l" (3511.1)111)) (3511 ()()(1) (223,8671 126,133 

Beginning Fund Balance 350,000 350,000 534,310 184,310 

Ending Fund Balance $ 0 $ 0 $ 310,443 s 310,443 

111 Appropriation Level 
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GREATER ALBA.~y PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
LINN COL'NTY, OREGON 

SCHEDGLE OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALA:'{CE 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the Y car Ended June 30, 2007 

DEBT SERVICE FUND 

VARMNCE 

ORIGINAL 
BUDGET 

FINAL 
BUDGET ACTUAL 

POSHlVE 

(NEGATIVE) 

REVEWJES: 
From Local Sources: 

Prnpcrty Tm:es 

Earnings on Investmc:nt; 
s LI 36)35 

I0,000 

$ 1,136,.'L,5 

10,00U 

$ 1,D L887 

29,141 

$ 4A48 

(19,141) 

Total Local Revenue: 1,146,335 1,146,335 1,161,028 14,693 

Tola! Revenue 1,146,335 1,146,33' 1,1(,1,028 14.h93 

EXPE>JDITURES: 
Debt Service 1,183,335 1,183,335 (1) 1,182,128 1,207 

Total Expenditures 1,183,335 1,183,335 1,182,128 1201 

lixcess of Rc:venues Over, 1Under) 

Expenditures (37,000) (37,00U) (21,100) 15,CJU0 

Other Financing Sources, (Cses) 

Transfers In 14,000 14,000 14,000 0 

Net Change in Fund lJalance (23,000) (23,000) (7,IIJ0) 15,CJ00 

Beginning Fund Balance 23,000 23,000 102,148 79,148 

Ending Fund Bakmce $ 0 $ CJ $ 95,048 $ 95.048 

(1) Appropriation Level 
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GREATER ALBANY PCBLIC SCHOOLS 
LINN COUNTY, OREGON 

SCHEDLLE OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES A!\D CHANGES JI\ FUND BALANCE 
BlTDGET AND ACTL AL 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2007 

PERS REFINANCE FUND 

REVENUES: 
From Local Sources: 

Total Local Revenue: 

ORIGINAL 
BUDGET 

$ 2.325.000 

FINAL 
BUDGET 

$ 2,325,000 $ 

ACTUAL 

2,415,476 

VARIJ\NCI; 

l'OSII !VE 
(NEGATIVE) 

s 90.476 

Total Revenue 2,325,000 2,325,000 2,415,476 90,476 

EXPENDITCRES: 
Debt Scryicc: 2,453,487 2.453,487 11 I 2,453,487 () 

Total Expenditures 2,453,487 2,453,487 2,453,487 0 

Net Change in Fund Balance (128,487) (128,487) (38,011) 90,476 

lkginning Fund Balance 990,000 990,000 957,664 (32,336 I 

Ending Fund Balance s 861,513 $ 861,513 s 919,653 $ 58,140 

(1) Appropriation Level 
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GREATER ALBANY PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
LIN'.\1 COUNTY, OREGON 

SCHEDULE OF RRVRNllES EXPENDITURES \;\I) CHANGES IN Fl 'ID BALANCE 
Bl l)(;Kr AND ACT! \L 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2007 

REVENUES• 
From Loc8l Sources: 

Total Local Revenue: 

Total Revenue 

EXPENDTTVRES: 
Facilities .\L·quisition and Construction 

Total Expenditures 

Excess of Revenues Over, (Under) 
Expenditures 

Other l'inancing Sources, (Uses) 

Sale of Fixed A sscts 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

Beginning Fund Balance 

Ending Fund Balance 

(1) Appropriation Level 

CAPITAL IMPROVEME);T FUND #1 

ORKiJ.NAL 
BUDGET 

flNJ\L 
BUDGET 

s: 25,000 

25,000 

s; 25,000 

25,000 

1,675,000 

1,675,000 

1,675,000 

1,675,000 

(1,650,000) (1,650,000) 

s; 

350,000 

(1,300,000) 

1,300,000 

0 s; 

350,000 

(1,300,000) 

1,300,000 

0 

ACTUAL 

.} 72,004 

72,004 

( 11 780 

780 

71,224 

0 

71,224 

1,423,165 

s 1,494,389 

VARIANCE 

POSITIVE 
(NEGATIVE) 

s; 47,004 

47,004 

1,674,220 

1,674,220 

1,721,224 

(350,000) 

1,371,224 

123,165 

s 1,494,389 
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GREATER ALBANY PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
Ll'f'i COUNTY, OREGON 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES A:'iD CHANGES J'.',I flT'.',ID BALANCE 

Bll])(;ET AND ACIL\L 

Fm· the Year Ended June 30, 2007 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND #2 

OR[GINJ\L 

BUDGET 

FINAL 

BUDGET ACTUAL 

V /\RI/\NCE 

POSITIVE 

(1\EGATIVE) 

REVENUES: 

From Locai Sources: 

Total Local Revenue: 0 \; 0 $ ] $ ] 

Total Revenue 0 0 3 3 

EXPENDITL'RES: 

Support SerYiccs 350 350 ( I I 350 () 

Total Expenditures 350 350 350 0 

Net Change in Fund Balance (350) (350) (347) 3 

Beginning Fund 13alancc 350 350 363 13 

Ending Fund 13alancc $ 0 s () $ 16 s 16 

(1) Appropriation Level 
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GREATER ALBANY PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
LINN COUNTY, OREGON 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN PROPRIETARY NET ASSETS 
ACTUAL AND BUDGET 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2007 

INSURANCE RESERVE FUND 

ORIGINAL 
BUDGET 

FINAL 
BUDGET ACTUAL 

VARIANCE 
POSITIVE 

(NEGATIVE) 

REVENUES: 
From Local Sources: 

Total Local Revenue: $ 8,000 $ 8,000 $ 23,581 $ 15,581 

Total Revenue 8,000 8,000 23,581 15,581 

EXPENDITURES: 
Instruction 
Support Services 
Enterprise and Community Services 
Contingency 

27,500 
230,299 

9,000 
91,201 

27,500 
230,299 

9,000 
91,201 

(I) 
(1) 
(!) 
(I) 

6,893 
76,153 

4,153 
0 

20,607 
154,146 

4,847 
91,201 

Total Expenditures 358,000 358,000 87,199 96,048 

Net Change in Fund Balance (350,000) (350,000) (63,618) 286,382 

Beginning Fund Balance 350,000 350,000 405,658 55,658 

Ending Fund Balance $ 0 $ 0 $ 342,040 $ 342,040 

(1) Appropriation Level 
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GREATERALBAl\Y PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
SCHEDllLE OF REVENUE BY FUNCTION - ALL FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR El\DED JUNE 30, 2007 

Revenue from Local Sources 
11 JO Ad \'c1lorem Taxes Levied by District 
13 IO Rcgul,n Day School Tuition 
1500 l::armngs on Investments 
1600 Food Service 
1700 Extracurricular Activiies 
1920 Contributions and Donations From Private Sources 
1930 Rental or Lease Payments From Private Contractors 
J960 Reen, cry of Prior Ycars' [spcnditure 
1970 Sen ices Provided Other Funds 
1980 Fces Charged lo Grants 
1990 Miscellaneous 

Total Revenue from Local Sources 

Fund 100 Fund 200 Fund 300 Fund 400 Fund 600 
$17,147,905 $U3 U18C, 

$35,418 
$1,UU4,489 $54,963 S77,626 $1,434,348 $19,069 

S836,574 
$50,178 S1,633,772 

$500 $2,500 
$33,250 
$35,776 

$2,3(1(,,993 
$83, I03 

:til'.l6,l /4 l,)'.11,0V/ M,'.lU 
$18,546,793 S3,125,416 $3,576,505 $1,434,348 $23,581, 

Total Revenue from Intcrmcdiatc Sources 

Revenue from State Sources 
3101 State School Fund - General Support 

3103 Conunon School Fund 

3104 State \fanaged County Timber 

3199 Other l'nrestricted Grants-in-."std 
3299 Other Restricted Grants-in-.\ id 

Total Revenue from State Sources 

Revenue from Federal Sources 
4500 Restricted Revenue From the Federal Government Through the State 

480 I Federal Forest Fees 

4899 Other Revenue in l ,ieu o! T;ixes 
4900 Rencnuc for/on Behallolthe District 

Total Revenue from J,'ederal Sources 

Revenue from Other Sources 
5100 Long Term Debt Financing Sources 

5200 Interfund Transfers 

5300 Sale ol or Compensation for I oss of Fixed Assets 
5400 ResourL,es - Beginning Fund flalancc 

Total Revenue from Other Sources 

Grand Totals 

Fund 300 Fund 400 Fund 600 
21 O I Countv School Funds $47,839 
2200 Rcstrt~·tcct Revenue 

Revenue from Intermediate Sources Fund 100 

, 0 Sil '(), 47,83l/ 

Fund 100 Fund 200 Fund 300 Fund 400 Fund 600 
$37,427,169 

$730,668 
$187,329 

$259,380 $155,680 
$290,246 $[32,434 

$38,894,792 $288,114 $0 so $0 

Fund 100 Fund 200 Fund 300 Fund 400 Fund 600 
$0 $4,754,455 $0 so $0 

$969,017 $0 $0 so $0 
$3,019 

$ [43,857 

$972,036 $4,898,312 $0 SU $0 

Fund 100 Fund 200 Fund 300 Fund 400 Fund 600 
$1,331,000 $58,513,878 

$538,015 $14,000 

$16 $0 so $0 $0 
$8,475,276 $1,172,766 $1,(J';l),813 $1,423,519 $405,658 

$8,475,292 $4,04 I ,78 I $1,073,813 $59,937,407 $405,658 

$66,936,752 Sl2,414,592I $4,650,318[ $61,371,755 $429,2391 
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GREATER ALBA"\' PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
SCHEDCLE OF EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION/OBJECT 

FOR THE YEAR E"DED JUNE 30, 2007 

-Fund· 100 General Fund 

uctinn Expenditures 

Primary, K-3 

lntcnncdialc Programs 

Elementary Extracunicular 

~fiddle/Junior High Program, 

~fiddle/Junior High School Exn·acurricular 

High School Programs 

High School ExtrncuniC1Jbr 
i1 lT-Klndergartcn Progrcim~ 

L2li_I iii 1..1gram.s for the Talented :md (_.lifted 

Totals OIJicct I 00 Ohject 2011 Object 3110 

$8,549,6 115 \\6/.t.375 $2,352,26'1 SX7. UO 

$5,516,768 S3,IJ22.lJ47 $1,525,508 S-1, .226 

$0 

$6,189,224 S4, 172,555 $1,704,752 S17.002 

$0 

$7,714,109 S5.21-1.596 $2,076,639 S81,417 

$585,301 ,.,:,o, 1ss $101,031 S54, 112 

$0 

$'),1107 ~;,[, 127 $•138 )3.991 

Restrictive Programs for Stucknts with Disabilities $>1,755,.580 -~,:,1\SJ,\)96 $1,684,485 \' 7 2,004 
1 Less Restrictive Programs for Students with Disabilities 125( 

Early lutervention 

Remediation 

Title! 

Alternative Education 

I·:11glish Sec011d L:::mguag,-.: Programs 

I..:.-en Pnrcnt Progiam 

hl1g1 ant Education 

Youth Corrections Education 

Other Programs 

Adult/Coutinuing Educntion Programs 

Summer School Programs 

$2,763,400 S1.841,501 $915,218 S!,559 
$0 

$0 

$0 

$704,170 S35 l 770 $143,9371 S171.326 

S<J76.620 "·" :.767 $307, 1111'! S 1.c<~6 
$0 

$0 
-----

$0 

$0 

$0 
$0 

Obicct 41111 

$•135.876 

$321,087 

$294,915 

$341,457 

$,151 

$]7,9')5 
$5,122 

$37.137 

'" 0(,8 

,_
Total lnstruct10n Expenditures $37,763,824 524.6)4.892 $10,811,421 S8,, ,403 $1,460, l 08 

Object 500 Object GOO Obieet 700 

--

$0 $0 to 

Inqr 

1111 

I I 12 

l 113 

1121 

1122 

l 13 1 

1132 
II 1(1 

1260 

1271 
pn 

1280 

12\1 l 

1294 

1299 

1300 

1400 

Support Services Expcnditnre~ 

2 l \(i .\lleudance and Social WL>tk Scr\'ict:s 

Guidance Services 

2130 Health Services 

2140 Psychological Services 

2150 Speech Pathology and Audiology Services 

2160 Other Student Treatment Servi:e.s 

2 I 90 Scn,icc Dfrcction, Stmknt Suppoll Service:. 

2:] 11 l1nprovemeut of Instrnctic_,n Senices 

22:::-i:1 blucational Medi;i Sera.i;.;c::, 

,,\:,::,:essmcut & Testing 
2240 h1sh1.1ctional Staff Developme11t 

2310 Board of Education Services 

2.320 Executive Administratiou Services 

:2410 Office of the Priucipal Services 

2490 0th.er Support Services School Administration 

25 l 1_ 1 Dir cction of H11si11ess Suj')'\Jrt Services 
.2)21.:1 l·is,.:al Services 

25-1.ii Opcration and !'vlaintcnancc of [)!ant Services 

2550 Student Transpo11at10n Senices. 

2570 Internal Services 

2610 Directiou of Central Supp011 Services 
,.,6, 0 Planning, Research, Development. Evaluation Ser\'ices, 
- - Grant Writing and Statistical Services 

lnfl,nnntion Services 

Staff Services 

1·L·drnolo1-:,,y Services 

26 70 Records Management Services 

2690 Other Suppo1t Services - C enrral 

2"'i00 Supplemental Retiremeut Program 

Total Support Services Expenditures 

I 

Tou,ls Olijec~_IOO 

$21•1,IJl3 SI l 1-21/\ 

$1/142,158 $1.t'il2A4<) 

$22,371 

$44,124 S?C.380 

$701,968 5.:.;2 53 l 

$0 

$290,077 S20L459 

$">')4.1 l I $1 ,, .711 

$(,35, 7511 r:·~ I .L192 

$IOLI!(, S::, 170 

$212,212 $106,719 

$248,171 $542 

$490,476 SJ53.563 

$4,552,990 SJ. 121.402 
$0 

$1(J7,9l(1 ~' l .\ l ,(1Xl 

5414,2B5 ~,2-Ll,5i2 

$5,989,(,30 .s1.u_.i,1% 
S2,610,467 SUJC>3[! 

$83,335 i ,43,046 

$0 

$0 

$ Hi,540 

$•114,571 ,. 121 

$564Ji73 ,22,,751) 

$0 

$0 

$1,395,534 $6,0,302 

Object 21111 Obiect 31111 Ohject 400 

$(, 1,657 'r>-fiJ, 17,i $l)1IX 

$417.i,34 ,8.923 $3,155 

S20,320 $2,051 

$15,013 S76 $1,655 

$159.397 S90,067 $7,903 

$81,192 $675 w,,16 

$67, l O I ~20. l78 $35 R?f, 

$ l (,5,,170 Rl52 $')8 1)16 

$24,311 $135 

$17,509 $82.207 $5,777 

$3,634 $175,085 $2,724 

$127,185 $3,730 $4,774 

$1,274,072 $97.734 $40,308 

$52,282 S!.<HO $1.637 

$112.415 .;.;::r.<:()1 $8,007 
,wn.s10 \;27•,; <73 $455.9'!7 
~,;,;4 OR? S32.810 $467,042 

~?1 076 Sl 7,267 ,$54 

S 16.S,to 

$98,521 S9~A58 $7,519 

$114,n'> -:,t/1.'JJO $8(1,261 

$762,352 $2.880 

Ohiect 500 ··()bj~:~;t···(;l-)01 Object '700 

$2,070 

$535 

$3.795 

$66,186 

$1,224 

$19,474 

$175 

$50 

,~121,203 $122.1% 

$64.624 $51,598 

$1,350 
SJ9_54J $700 

$20,967,508 SI o.,23.129 $5,065,404 S3,648,930 $1,236,117 S22).375 $268,553 so 

Enterprise and Community Services Expenditures 

J l n, 1 F,,L,d Se1-vices 

Uthcr Enkrpri:.e Sen·iL>~·~ 

Comm1mity Service~ 

3500 Custody and Care ofChlldrcn Services 

: Totals i Objen 100 

so 
sol 
$0' 

$193,543 ! ~ S 125,784 

Object 200 i Object 300 Object 400 Object 500 

: 

i 

i 
$61,518 Sl.422 $4.713 so 

Object 600 Object 700 

$106 

Total Enterprise and Community Services Expenditures 
$ l 93,543 $125,784 $61,518 $1,422 $4,713 $0 $106 $0 

Facilities A<:quisition and Construction Expenditures 

4110 Service Area Direction 

4120 Site Acquisition and Development Services 
4150 Building Acquisitiou, Coustmction, and huprovement 
4190 Other Facilities Construction Services 

Total Facilities Acquisition and Construction 
Expenditures $1,033,147 $0 $0 $0 

Totals Object 100 

$0 

$0 
$1,033,147 

$0 

Obiect 200 Obiect 300 Obiect 400 Obiect500 

$137,175 $895,972 

$0 $137,175 $0 $895,972 

Obiect 600 Object 700 

Totals Object 100 Obie<:t 200 Obiect300 Object 400 Obiect500 Object 600 Object 700 

$0 

$552,015 $552,015 

$0 

$0 

Other Us,s Expenditures 

5 l 00 Debt Service 

5200 Transfers ofFunds 

5300 Apportionment of Funds by ESD 

5400 PERS UAL Baud Lump Sum 

Total Other Uses Expenditnres $)52,015 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $552,015 

Grand Total s60,s 10,0311 $35,3o3,so51 $15,938,3431 s4,624,93o 1 $2,100,93&1 s1,121,347 I $268,6591 $552,0151 
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GREATER ALBAI',Y PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITL1RES BY FUNCTIOI\/OBJECT 

FOR THE YEAR E:'-/DED JUNE 30, 2007 

I Fund: 200 - Special Revenue Fund 

Instruction Expenditures 
1111 Primary, K-3 
1112 Intermediate Programs 
1113 Elementary Extracurricular 
1121 Middle/Junior High Programs 
1122 Middle/Junior High School Extracurricular 
1131 High School Programs 
1132 High School Extracurricular 
1220 Restrictive P m;irams for Students with Disabilities 
1250 Less Restrictive Programs for Students with Disabilities 
1272 Title I 
1280 Alternative Education 
1291 English Second Language Programs 

Total Instruction Expenditures 

Support Services Expenditures 
211 OAttendance and Social Work Ser,ices 
2120 Guidance Services 
2130 Health Sff,ices 
2140 Psychological Services 
2150 Speech Pathology and Audiology Services 
2190 Service Direction, Student Support Services 
2210 Improvement of Instruction Services 
2240 lnstructiona Staff Development 
2410 Office of the Principal Services 
2490 Other Suppor-t Services School Administration 
251 O Direction of Business Support Services 
2520 Fiscal Services 
2540 Operation and Maintenance of Plant Services 
2550 Student Transportation Services 
2660 Technology Services 

Total Support Services Expenditures 

Totals Object 100 Ob'ect 200 Obiect 300 Obiect 400 Object 500 Object 600 Ob'ect 700 
$15,003 $655 $14,348 

$236 $236 
$236,757 SS,604 $871 $301 $225,975 

$9,705 $9.105 
$242,026 $2,305 $373 $0 $230.310 $9,038 

I $76,513 $1,701 $74,812 
$1,167,229 $24,200 $3,16 I $16,844 $1,086.04" $36,983 

$865,461 $571,641 $230,908 $4,071 $44,336 $14,505 
$440,481 $304,952 $132,055 $23 $3451 

$1,008,156 $631,687 $289,849 $86,620 
$24,193 $8,853 $2,184 $13,156 

$124,151 $74,315 $37,16' $12,6/5 
' 0 0,$4,209,911 $ ,027,557 $696,568 ~23,595 $1,801,66o $60,526 

I 

I 

Totals Ob'ect 100 Obiect 200 Obiect 300 
$416,879 $2, 0,879 $120,903 $18,125 

$2,929 $344 $/8 $1,309 
$1,897 $825 $163 $909 

$78,686 $55,999 $22,175 $189 
$38,249 S28, 125 $10,124 

$302,598 $205,451 $76,789 $12,845 
$36,133 $5,662 $970 $12,127 

$339,329 $164,436 $41,143 $129,282 
$3,174 $2,214 $503 

$54,917 '.)40,552 $14,265 
$29 

$83,103 
$7,072 $2,236 $433 $4,372 

$560,338 $7,671 $1,920 $58,326 
$390, 102/ $81,968 $33,972 $218,432 

,., "'·"-$2,315,435 0800,462 $324,044 $456,516 

Object 400 Obiect 500 
$6,072 
$1, 19~ 

$323 

$6,443 
$16,774 

S3,863 
$457 

$29 

$31 
$492,421 

$55,730 
$36 089 $548,151 

$0 $0 

Obiect 600 Object 700 

$1070 

$83,103 

-$84,113 $0 

Enterprise and Community Services Expenditures 
3100 Food Services 
3300 Community Services 
3500 Custody and Care of Children Services 

Totals Obiect 100 Obiect 200 Obiect 300 Obiect 400 Obiect 500 Object 600 Object 700 
$2,798,446 S776,487 $439,062 '.}254,609 $1,257,1517 $71,137 

----

$63,959 I $42,167 $19,049 $2,359 $3841 
I $2,0071 $86 $15 $1 9061 

Total Enterprise and Community Services Expenditures 
$2,864,412 $818,740 $458,126 $256,968 $1,259,441 $71,137 so $0 

Facilities Acquisition and Construction Expenditures Totals Ob'ect 100 Ob'ect 200 Ob'ect 300 Ob'ect 400 Ob'ect 500 Ob'ect 600 Ob'ect 700 

4150 Building Acquisition, Construction. and Improvement Servicesf----~~+--------+----~-~----+------+----+------+--------1S833,859 $333,859 
4190 Other Fac1'11tres Construction Se,-,,ces $0 

Total Facilities Acquisition and Construction 
Expenditures $833,859 $0 $0 $833,859 so $0 $0 $0 

Other Uses Expenditures Totals Ob'ect 100 Ob'ect 200 Ob'ect 300 Ob'ect 400 Ob'ect 500 Ob'ect 600 Ob'ect 700 
5100 Debt Service $315,986 $315,986 

Total Other Uses Expenditures $315,986 $0 so $0 $0 $0 $315,986 $0 

Grand Total $10,539,6031 S3 312.7591 $1,478)38 S1 570,9381$3,097195 $679:814! S400, 159T $0 
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GREATER ALBANY PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION/OBJECT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 

'Fund: 300 - Debt Service Fund 

Other Uses Expenditures 
5100 Debt Service 
5200 Transfers of Funds 
5300 Apportionment of Funds by ESD 
5400 PERS UAL Bond Lump Sum 

Total Other Uses Expenditures 

Grand Total 

Object 400 Object 500 Object 600 -Object 700 
$3 635,616 
Totals Object 100 Object 200 Ob'ect 300 

$3,635,616 
$0 
$0 
$0 

$3,635,616 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,635,616 $0 

$3,635,6161 $0 $0] :fol $0 $0 r$3,635,616 $01 
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GREATER ALBA.'iY PCBLIC SCHOOLS 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITCRES BY FUNCTIO.'i/OBJECT 

FOR THE YEAR El\DED JUNE 30, 2007 

!Fund: 400 - Capital Construction.Funds 

Support Services Expenditures Totals ob·ect 100 Ob"ect 200 Ob'ect 300 Ob'ect 400 Ob'ect 500 Ob·ect 600 ob·ect 700 

2520 Fiscal Ser1ices $322,921 $322,921 

Total Support Services Expenditures $322,921 $0 $0 $322,921 $0 $0 so $0 

Facilities Acquisition and Construction Expenditures 
4120 Site Acquisition and Development Services 
4150 Building Acquisition, Construction. and Improvement 
4190 Other Facilities Construction Ser1ices 

Totals Obiect 100 Obiect 200 Obiect 300 Obiect 400 Ob'ect 500 Object 600 Obiect 700 
$11,376 $1,495 $9,881 I 

I $1,926,047 $1,475,909 $432,021 $18,1171 

: $0 I 

Total Facilities Acquisition and Construction 
Expenditures $1,937,423 so $0 $1,477,404 so $441,902 $18 117 $0 

Grand Total $2,260,344 I ·$al $0 $1,800,3251 so $441,9021 $18,117 $DI 
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GREATER ALBANY PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTIO:\/OBJECT 

FOR THE YEAR El\DED JUNE 30, 2007 

I Fund: 600 - Internal Service Fund 

Instruction Expenditures 
1111 Primary, .l<-3 
1112 
1113 
1121 
1122 
1131 
1132 
1140 
1210 
1220 
1250 
1260 
1271 
1272 
1280 
1291 
1292 
1293 
1294 
1299 
1300 
1400 

Intermediate Programs 
Elementary Extracurricular 
Middle/Junior High Programs 
Middle/Junior High School Extracurricular 
High School Programs 
High School Extracurricular 
Pre-Kindergarten Programs 
Programs for the Talented and Gifted 
Restrictive Programs for Students with Disabilities 
Less Restrictive Programs for Students with Disabilities 
Early Intervention 
Remediation 
Title I 
Alternative Education 
English Second Language Programs 
Teen Parent Program 
Migrant Education 
Youth Corrections Education 
Other Programs 
Adult/Continuing Education Programs 
Summer School Programs I 

Totals Object 100 Object 200 Object 300 
$15 $15 

$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 

$1,277 $554 
$994 $994 

$0 
$0 

$4,561 $4,561 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 

---

$45 $45 
-----

$0 
- --- -- ----

$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 

Object 400 ObTect 500 
---

Object 600 Object 700 

$723 

--

-------

I 

----

I 

Tota I Instruction Expend 1tu res $6,892 $0 $6,169 $0 $723 $0 $0 $0 

Support Services Expenditures 
2110 Attendance and Social Work Ser,ices 
2120 Guidance Services 
2130 Health Services 
2140 Psychological Services 
2150 Speech Pathology and Audiology Services 
2160 Other Student Treatment Services 
2190 Service Direction, Student Support Services 
221 O Improvement of Instruction Services 
2220 Educationa! Media Services 
2230 Assessment & Testing 
2240 Instructional Staff Development 
231 O Board of Education Services 
2320 Executive Administration Services 
241 O Office of the Principal Services 
2490 Other Support Services - School Administration 
251 O Direction of Business Support Services 
2520 Fiscal Services 
2540 Operation and Maintenance of Plant Services 
2550 Student Transportation Services 
2570 Internal Services 
2610 Direction of Central Support Services 

2620 Planning. Research, Development, Evaluation Services, 
Grant Writing and Statistical Services 

2630 Information Services 
2640 Staff Services 
2660 Techno:ogy Services 
2670 Records Management Services 
2690 Other Support Services - Central 
2700 Supplemental Retirement Program 

I 

Totals Object 100 Object 200 Object 300 
$0 

$95 $95 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 

$626 
$0 
$0 

$33,551 S19,818 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 

$21,395 s:2.4ss $5,304 $630 
$6,72 f $6,127 

~ 

$5,748 $4,4/ 0 
$0 
$0 

$0 
$0 
$0 

$8,010 $8,010 
$0 
$0 
$0 

Object 400 Obiect 500 Object 600 Object700 

l 

$625 

·-

$13,733 

$3,CC3 

$1,278 

Total Support Services Expenditures $76,152 $12,458 $24,606 $20,448 $3,629 $0 $15,011 $0 

Enterprise and Community Services Expenditures 
3100 Food Services 
3200 Other Enterprise Services 
3300 Community Services 
3500 Custody and Care of Children Services 

I 
I 
I 

I 

Totals IObject 100 Object 200 Object 300 
$4,1481 $4,148 

$DI 
----~-

$0 
$5 $5 

Object 400 I Object 500 Object 600 I Object 700 

f-

Total Enterprise and Community Services Expenditures 
$4,153 $0 $4,153 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Facilities Acquisition and Construction Expenditures 
4110 Service Area Direction 
4120 Site Acquisition and Development Services 
4150 Building Acquisition, Construction, and Improvement 
4190 Other Facilities Construction Services 

Totals Obiect 100 Obiect 200 Obiect 300 Oblect400 Obiect 500 Obiect600 Obiect 700 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 

Total Facilities Acquisition and Construction 
Expenditures $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Other Uses Expenditures 
51 00 Debt Service 
5200 Transfers of Funds 
5300 Apportionment of Funds by ESD 
5400 PERS UAL Bond Lump Sum 

Totals Object 100 Object 200 Object 300 Object-400 Object 500 Obiect600 Object 700 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 

Total Other Uses Expenditures $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Grand Total $87,1971 $12,4581 .. $34,9281 $20,44s 1 $4,3521 $0 I $15,011 I ---$GI 
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GREATERALBAc,YPUBLIC SCHOOLS 

LINN COUNTY, OREGON 

SCHEDULE OF PROPERTY TA}( TRANSACTIONS AI\D BALANCES 
OF TAXES UNCOLLECTED 

For The Year Ended June 30, 2007 

TA..,\': 
YEAR 

ORIGINAL 
LEVY OR 
BALANCE 

UNCOLLECTED 
7/1/2006 

DEDDCT 
DISCOUNTS 

AD.TT TST!v1ENTS 
TO 

ROLLS 
ADD 

INTEREST 

C1\SH 
COLLECTIONS 
BY COUNTY 
TREASURER 

R~\LANCE 
lJNCOLLl::CTED OR 
UNSEGREGATED 

A[' 6/30/07 

GENERAL FlJND: 

CURRENT: 
2006-07 $ 17,568,205 $ 372,332 $ 43,633 $ 9,096 16,570,992 $ 677,610 

PRlOR YEARS 
2005-06 
2004-05 

2003-04 

2002-03 

2001-02 and prior 

563,453 
256,(, 18 

135,975 

62,179 
43,463 

(116) 
( !02) 

( I 0) 
(11) 

(16) 

(65,212) 
111,146) 

(30,996) 

(6,136) 

(7,187) 

20,s:n 
l (~.-~63 

I (i,887 

12,785 

4,740 

286-948 
D0.510 
72J!C,O 

53,254 

13,192 

231,941 
131,427 

49,817 

15,585 

27,839 

Total Prior 1 JJ6] ,688 (256) (120,677) 71.307 555,964 456,609 

Total General Fund $ 18,629,893 $ 372,076 $ (77,044)========== $ 80,403 $ 17,126,956 $ 1,134,219========= 

RECONC1 1 .IAJJON OFREVJ,:\I 11•: l,ENERAL 
FUND 

Cash Collections by County Treasurer Above $ 17,126,956 

J\ccrual of RL'Cci1·ables: 
June 30, 211IJ(i 

June 30, 21107 

(180,88(,) 

201,835 

Total Revenue $ 17,147,905 
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GREATER ALBA.i"fY PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

LINN COUNTY, OREGON 

SCHEDULE OF PROPERTY TAX TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES 
OF TAXES UNCOLLECTED 

For The Year Ended June 30, 2007 

TAX 
YEAR 

DEBT SERVICE FlJND: 

ctm.R1-:nr· 
2005-06 

PRIOR YEARS 

2004-05 

2003-04 

2002-03 

2001-02 

2000-01 & Prior 

Total Prior 

Total Debt Service Fund 

ORIGINAL 

IXVYOR 

BAL1\NC!l 

UNCOLLECTED 

7/1/2006 

$ 1,149,712 

41,785 

21,094 

11,211 

5,125 

3,059 

82274 

$ L231,986 

DEDUCT 

DISCOUNTS 

$ 27,595 

(10) 

(8) 

(I) 
(1) 
(1) 

(21) 

$ 27,574 

ADJUS' l MENTS 

TO 

ROLLS 

$ 12,192 

(901) 

(857) 

(2,553) 

(468) 

(648) 

(5,427) 

$ 6,765 

J\DD 
INTEREST 

674 

1,686 

1.344 

1.387 

LOSO 

389 

5.857 

$ 6,531 

C1\SH 

COLLl!CrIONS 

BYCOUl\TY 

TREASURER 

1,078,430 

30.427 

10,752 
5.93(, 

4,409 

1,046 

52.570 

$ I, 13 I ,000 

BAL\NCE 

UNCULU,CT!m OR 

UNSEGREGATED 

AT 6/30/07 

$ 56,553 

12,153 

IOXl7 

4,110 

1,299 

0 

28,400 

$ 86,708 

RECONCJIJArION OF REVENUI•: DEBT SERVICE 

FUND 

Cash Collections bv County Treasurer Above 

Accrual ofReceivables: 

June 30, 2006 
June 30, 2il(J7 

$ 1,131,000 

(13,449) 

14)36 

Total Revenue $ l,13!,887 
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GREATER ALBANY PLBLIC SCHOOLS 
LINN COUNTY, OREGON 

SLPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 
,\s Required by The Oregon Deptmrnt of Education - Form 3211-C 

For The Year Ended June 30, 2007 

A. Energy hills for heating- all funds: 

hmction 2540 

Function 2550 

B. Replacement of equipment - General Fund: 

Include all General Fund expenditures in Object 542. except for the following exclusions: 

Exclude thl':,c functions: 
1113, 1122 & 1132 Co-curricular activitil'.s 4150 Cons1rul'.1ion 

1140 Pre-kindergarten 2550 Pupil transportation 

1300 Continuing education 3100 Food service 

1400 Summer school 3300 Community services 

Objc,cls 325 and 326 

$ 1,252,384 

12,614 

Amount 

,, 
,p 94,3 l 6 

Form 581-3211-C (Rev 9/05) 
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PAULY, ROGERS AND CO., P.C. 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

November 21, 2007 
• 12700 SW 72ND AVENUE • TIGARD, OREGON 97223 
• (503) 620-2632 • FAX (503) 684-7523 

2006-2007 AUDITORS' COMMENTS AND DISCLOSURES 

Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-000 through 162-16-000 the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon 
Municipal Corporations, prescribed by the Secretary of State in cooperation with the Oregon State Board of 
Accountancy, enumerate the financial statements, schedules, comments and disclosures required in audit reports. 
The required statements and schedules are set forth in preceding pages of this report. Required comments and 
disclosures related to our audit of such statements and schedules are set forth as follows. 

REPORT ON INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROL 

We have audited the basic financial statements of Greater Albany Public School District, Linn County, Oregon, as 
of and for the year ended June 30, 2007, and have issued our report thereon dated November 21, 2007. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. 

The management of Greater Albany Public School District, Linn County, Oregon, is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining an internal control structure. In fulfilling this responsibility, estimates and judgments by management 
are required to assess the expected benefits and related costs of internal control structure policies and procedures. 
The objectives of an internal control structure are to provide management with reasonable, but not absolute, 
assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and that transactions are 
executed in accordance with management's authorization and recorded properly to permit the preparation of basic 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America. 
Because of inherent limitations in any internal control structure, errors or irregularities may nevertheless occur and 
not be detected. Also, projection of any evaluation of the structure to future periods is subject to the risk that 
procedures may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the effectiveness of the design and 
operation of policies and procedures may deteriorate. 

In planning and performing our audit of the basic financial statements of Greater Albany Public School District, 
Linn County, Oregon, for the year ended June 30, 2007, we obtained an understanding of the internal control 
structure. With respect to the internal control structure, we obtained an understanding of the design of relevant 
policies and procedures and whether they have been placed in operation, and we assessed control risk in order to 
determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the basic financial statements and 
not to provide an opinion on the internal control structure. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 

Our consideration of the internal control structure would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control 
structure that might be material weaknesses under standards established by the American Institute of Ceriified 
Public Accountants. 
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2006-2007 AUDITORS' COMMENTS AND DISCLOSURES 

REPORT ON INTERl',,"AL ACCOUNTING CONTROL (CONTINUED! 

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in 
the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the 
entity's ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the entity's 
financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the enti1y·s internal 
control. 

We noted matters involving the internal control structure and its operation that we consider to be significant 
deficiencies under standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, which are noted 
in our management letter dated November 21, 2007. 

A material weakness is a significant deficiency in which the design or operation of one or more of the specific 
internal control structure elements does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that errors and irregularities in 
amounts that would be material in relation to the general purpose financial statements being audited may occur and 
not be detected within a timely period by employees in the nonnal course of perfonning their assigned functions. 
We noted no matters imolving the internal control structure and its operations that we consider to be material 
weaknesses as defined above. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the board, audit committee, management, federal 
awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than 
these specified parties. 

ACCOCNTING RECORDS 

The financial accounting records were adequate for audit. 

BUDCET TRANSACTIONS 

Expenditures of the various funds appear to be within authorized appropriation levels for 2006-2007. except as 
noted on page 16. 

2006-2007 and 2006-2007 BUDGETS 

The budgets adopted for the current and ensuing fiscal year were examined during the audit. We did not note any 
instances where the budget preparation and adoption procedures followed were not in compliance with the Oregon 
Local Budget Law, based on our testing. 

COLLATERAL SECURlNCi BANK DEPOSITS 

Collateral pledged by the depositories appeared to be adequate at all times during the year, to meet requirements of 
Oregon Law. Each depository is required by ORS Chapter 295 to maintain securities having a value of not less than 
25 percent of the face amount of the collateral certificate issued by the pool manager for funds deposited in the 
depository in excess of the amounts insured by federal depository insurance. Deposits in the State Local 
Government Investment Pool are not required to be collateralized. 

INVESTMENTS 

The investments for the year ended June 30, 2007 were reviewed and appear to comply with the legal requirements 
pertaining to the investment of public funds contained in ORS 294.035 based upon our testin~. 
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2006-2007 AUDITORS' COMMENTS AND DISCLOSURES 

PUBLIC CONTRACTS AND PURCHASING 

The procedures for awarding public contracts were reviewed and, based upon our testing, we found no instances of 
noncompliance with ORS Chapter 279. 

INSURANCE AND FIDELITY BONDS 

Details concerning insurance and fidelity bond coverage were reviewed during the audit. The coverage provided 
appears to meet legal requirements. We do not have the professional expertise to state whether the insurance 
coverage is adequate. 

STATUTORY BONDED DEBT LIMITATION 

The outstanding bonded debt was within statutory limits, based upon our testing. 

OUT ST ANDING WARRANTS 

There were no outstanding endorsed warrants at June 30, 2007. 

PROGRAMS FUNDED FROM OUTSIDE SOURCES 

We reviewed and tested, to the extent we considered necessary in the circumstances, transactions and reports 
relative to federal and state grant programs. Our reports concerning grant compliance and a schedule of federal 
assistance are contained in this report in the grant compliance review section. 

STATE HIGHWAY FUNDS 

No State Highway Funds were received during the year ended June 30, 2007. 

STATE SCHOOL FUND DISTRIBUTION INFORMATION 

We have performed the procedures recommended by the Oregon Secretary of State, Audits Division, regarding the 
compliance with the requirements of ORS 327 .013, as further defined by the Oregon State Department of Education, 
pertaining to the calculation and reporting of the factors used to compute the State School Fund distribution for the 
year ended June 30, 2007. 

Based on the work described above we have found no instances of noncompliance with the rules and regulations 
pertaining to the calculation and reporting of the factors used to compute the State School Fund distribution for the 
year ended June 30, 2007, except for two errors noted on the teachers' experience report. 

';?-4 '~t.,,,, ,,__p 1'1,.;-?c. 
PAULY, ROGERS AND CO., P.C. 
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GREATER ALBANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT 
LINN COUNTY, OREGON 

GRANT COMPLIANCE REVIEW 
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GREATER ALBANY PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
LINN COUNTY, OREGON 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL A WARDS 

For The Year Ended June 30, 2007 

FEDERAL GRANTOR/PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/PROGRAl\1 TITLE 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 
Passed Through State Department of Education: 

Title I Grants to Local Education Agencies 
Title I Grants to Local Education Agencies 
IDEA Part B, Special Education Grant 
IDEA Part B, Special Education Grant 
Vocational Education - Basic Grants 
Vocational Education - Basic Grants 
Migrant Ed 
Even Start 
Title IID, Enhancing Education Thru Tech 
Title IID, Enhancing Education Thru Tech 
Title IV 
Title IV 
Title V, Innovative Education 
Title V, Innovative Education 
Oregon Reading First 
Oregon Reading First 
Oregon Reading First/K-3 Statewide Literacy Outreach 
Title Ill, English Language Acquisition 
Title III, English Language Acquisition 
Title IIA, Improving Teacher Quality Grant 
Title IIA, Improving Teacher Quality Grant 
Strategies for Student Success 
Quality Improvement Literacy Grant 
Ell GF 07 Proficiency Credit Implementation-GIA 
SPR&I Grant 
DHS - Physical Act & Nutrition 
Coordinated School Health Expansion Project 

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 
OREGON EMPLOYMENT DEPARTME"t\'T 

Passed Through State Department of Education: 
Child Care Payments 

TOTAL OREGON EMPLOYMENT DEPARTMENT 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 

Passed Through State Department of Education: 
USDA Commodities 
Sumer Food Program 
School Breakfast Program 
National School Lunch Program 

TOTAL US.DEPARTMENT OF AG RICULTlIRE 

FISH & WILDLIFE 

rEDER.-\L FOREST FEES 

TOTAL FEDERAL ASSISTANCE 

(I) Major Program 

FEDERAL 
CFDA 

NUMBER 

84-010 
84-010 
84-027 
84-027 
84-048 
84-048 

84-213 
84-3 I 8 
84-318 
84-186 
84-186 
84-298 
84-298 
84-357 
84-357 
84.357 
84-365 
84-365 
84-367 
84-367 
84-367 

84-027 
NIA 

93-938 

93.575 

10-550 
10.559 
10-553 
I 0-555 

l 0-(,(,5 

GRANT PERIOD EXPENDITURES 

2005-2006 
2006-2007 
2005-2006 
2006-2007 
2005-2006 
2006-2007 
2006-2007 
2005-2006 
2005-2006 
2006-2007 
2005-2006 
2006-2007 
2005-2006 
2006-2007 
2005-2006 
2006-2007 
2006-2007 
2005-2006 
2006-2007 
2005-2006 
2006-2007 
2006-2007 
2006-2007 
2005-2006 
2006-2007 
2005-2006 
2005-2006 

2006-2007 
2006-2007 
2006-2007 
2006-2007 

2006-2(1117 

(I) $ 70,721 
(I) 1,209,147 

318,752 
1,234,171 

3,544 
75,662 

2,669 
5,532 

281 
10,659 
4,620 

31,394 
577 

7,510 
363 

105,313 
2,127 

19,506 
19,896 

139,675 
28,382 
15,695 
4,043 
4,354 
4,095 

526 
3,356 

3,322,569 

1,491 
1,491 

143,857 
(I) 43,392 
(I) 349,918 
(1) 1,038,536 

1,575,702 

1,569 

(I) 969,017 

$ 5,870,348 
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PAULY, ROGERS AND CO., P.C. 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

• 12700 SW 72ND AVENUE • TIGARD, OREGON 97223 
• (503) 620-2632 • FAX (503) 684-7523 

November 21, 2007 

To the Board of Directors 
Greater Albany Public School District 
Albany, Oregon 

Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other 
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance "'ith Government Auditing 

We have audited the financial statements of Greater Albany Public School District as of and for the year ended June 
30, 2007, and have issued our report thereon dated November 21, 2007. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial 
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and perfonning our audit, we considered Greater Albany Public School District's internal control over 
financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opmion on the 
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal 
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's 
internal control over financial reporting. 

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control docs not allow management or employees, in 
the nonnal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the 
District's ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the District's 
financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not be prewnted or detected by the District" s internal 
control. 

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more than 
a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented or detected by the 
District's internal control. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over 
financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Greater Albany Public School District's financial 
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material 
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effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with 
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results 
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards. 

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of Greater Albany Public School District in a separate 
letter dated November 21, 2007. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board, and others within the District, 
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

?~I~ aJ ~'~(", 
PAULY, ROGERS AND CO., P.C. 



fi.l PAULY, ROGERS AND CO., P.C. 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

• 12700 SW 72ND AVENUE • TIGARD, OREGON 97223 
-55- • (503) 620-2632 • FAX (503) 684-7523 

November 21, 2007 

To the Board of Directors 
Greater Albany Public School District 
Albany, Oregon 

Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance With Requirements Applicable to Each Major Program and· 
on Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance With 0MB Circular A-133 

CompJiance 

We have audited the compliance of Greater Albany Public School District with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (0MB) Circular A-133 Compliance 
Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2007. Greater 
Albany Public School District's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of 
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of Greater 
Albany Public School District's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Greater Albany Public 
School District's compliance based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and 0MB Circular A-133, Audits ofStates, Local Governments, and Non­
Profit Organizations. Those standards and 0MB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above 
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a 
test basis, evidence about Greater Albany Public School District's compliance with those requirements and 
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit 
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of Greater Albany 
Public School District's compliance with those requirements. 

In our opinion, Greater Albany Public School District complied, in all material respects, with the requirements 
referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2007. 

Internal Control Over Compliance 

The management of Greater Albany Public School District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective 
internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to 
federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered Greater Albany Public School District's 
internal control over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major 
federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on 
compliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over 
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control over 
compliance. 
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A control deficiency in an District's internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a 
control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affec'ts the 
District's ability to administer a federal program such that there is more than a remote likelihood that 
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is more than inconsequential will 
not be prevented or detected by the District's internal control. We noted no significant deficiencies over 
compliance. 

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more than 
a remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will 
not be prevented or detected by the District's internal control. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 
this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant 
deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that 
we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board, others within the District, and 
federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone 
other than these specified parties. 

~~ I~~ ~ (!., ./C. 
PAULY, ROGERS AND CO., P.C. 
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GREATER ALBANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT 
LINN COUNTY, OREGON 

SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AND CURRENT YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS 
AND QUESTIONED COSTS RELATNE TO FEDERAL AWARDS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2007 

CURRENT YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS: 

NONE 

PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS: 

The District is required to conduct an assessment of local needs for professional development with the involvement 
of teachers. The District did not conduct this required needs assessment. 

CURRENT YEAR AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 

UNQUALIFIED OPINION 

CURRENT YEAR AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR MAJOR PROGRAMS: 

UNQUALIFIED OPINION 

PROGRAM TESTED AS MAJOR FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007: 

FEDERAL FOREST FEES CFDA #10.665 
TITLE I- CFDA #84.010 
CHILD NUTRITION CLUSTER-CFDA #10.553, 10.555 and 10.559 

DOLLAR THRESHOLD FOR DISTINGUISHING BETWEEN TYPE A AND B PROGRAMS: 

$300,000 

LOW-RISK AUDIT QUALIFICATION: 

The District qualified as a low-risk auditee under section .530 of 0MB Circular A-133. 

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AW ARDS 

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of Greater Albany 
Public School District and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The information in this 
schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of 0MB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from 
amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements. 
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